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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEEPXXKB
TREASURER’S REPORT

SEHE

1.

Overview

| am pleased to report that, through effective financial
management, the University has maintained a
relatively healthy financial position for the financial
year 2017/18, with a consolidated surplus of $1.6
billion and consolidated net assets of $21.6 billion.
The improved financial capacity will enable the
University to support the resource needs identified in
the Strategic Plan 2016-2020 and to better prepare
for the new triennium 2019-2022.

Financial Analysis

The financial statements report the income and
expenditure for both recurrent and non-recurrent
activities funded by the government or supported by
other non-government funds. The tables and charts
on pages 6 to 8 provide additional information and
analyses of the financial results of the University by
sources of funding and their attribution to different
categories of activities. Comments and highlights
below only refer to the operating results of the
University.

Operating Results and Financial Position

Income

Total income increased by $299 million or 3.2% to
$9,534 million in 2017/18. Government subventions
accounted for $4,927 million and recorded an
increase of $92 million compared to the previous
financial year, mainly due to additional allocations
to block grants and supplementary grants to support
increase in student numbers, inflation and upward
pay adjustments for April 2017 and April 2018.
Tuition, programme and other fees increased by
$102 million to $2,120 million, of which 51.6%
was contributed by non-UGC (University Grants
Committee) funded programmes. Fees income from
non-UGC funded programmes slightly exceeded
that from the UGC funded programmes, owing to
self-financing tuition fees being charged for the
former in the absence of direct subsidies from
the government. The interest and net investment
income reached $838 million, recording a slight
reduction by $9 million arising from the negative
market outlook in the midst of trade war between the
United States and China, despite an overall increase
in interest income, dividend income and exchange
gain. In view of the impending launch of the Eighth
UGC Matching Grant Scheme, the donations and
benefactions income grew by $35 million or 5.0%
to $731 million, mainly for capital projects.

L

RATRIAERKBEZE—L/— /\FERFEEEK
RENETFAOR - BEEMAIIHEIE - KB
SR EENEBELE - ERRGEEEFERLT
BTG - KBEIFREE  iSRERMAN (F8
R KEKRREETE12016—2020) AFTE FSIEEE
FEER  URE—E-—NEZE_FH—E=F
EREBE AT 20 -

B2

It TSR PR T FE B MM IS B BB RO A R 32
- TREXBUNEEHIFENE £ - EX
ENBFHEZE  ZRERIERKEBNEHISH AR
BRIBRHEIRINEHMOAT - LT RRERLASE
BRI -

SEERBEMBIRR

WA
ARBEZE—E/—\FERNAREFEM=EAT
NWEERAREAZ =S —EA+AEB=FNEET
BN EBNBRARN+ AR TEEER Mt
FEMATZEET  EMOERZ2E ASEM
BARAE - UREAR-E—TtFNAMZE—/\FN
B R¥5 E 5N _E A AR N 2 RE B & R IE I HEED
T 28 RERAMEBCL LA -FETHEEREZ
+—RBZFTE EFREFABYEEDEEEH
BEE)ERREINA - hEEEEWABNZAT—
BN MBS EMRRER BT EEMMER
BELEFRANE  IUBBWALHESERE
HgE - EXEEPEEZHNSFEZT RERK
Wi s mIZREEEEE - #AFE - REKERU
BEE LA BEEMNERREFNSIFFEMN T
NBEET - B E/ \IRHE SECHHBI 2T SIENS#
H o BRERBRNAEN=TARERSBARIZAEL
E=T—88n  IRAFEERABRRIEEZER -



Expenditure

Total expenditure rose by 1.3% or $103 million to
$7,914 million in 2017/18, attributable mainly to the
upward revision of pay adjustment and the planned
increase in learning, research and support services,
as well as for capacity building.

Expenditure on learning and research amounted
to $6,326 million and accounted for 80% of total
expenditure, reaffirming the University’s continuous
advancement in teaching, learning and research. On
the other hand, expenditure on institutional support,
including premises and related expenses, student
and general education services, and management
and general, was steadily kept at 20%.

Operating Results

The University achieved a total comprehensive
income of $1,622 million for 2017/18, comprising
surpluses of $43 million, $16 million and $1,563
million in recurrent government funds, UGC
matching grants fund and non-government funds,
respectively.

Financial Position

The University’s net assets increased by 8.8% or
$1,622 million to $20.07 billion as at 30 June 2018.
Total investments increased moderately by $695
million or 8.7% to $8,691 million, arising from the
revaluation gain and additional investments in held-
to-maturity bonds and limited partnership. The cash
and short-term deposits increased by 5.2% to $9,911
million, 99% of which was placed in time deposits
to take advantage of interest hikes.

The net book value of fixed assets built up to $6,103
million as at 30 June 2018, a moderate increase of
5.6% or $323 million, mainly due to the construction
of the Jockey Club Postgraduate Halls 2 & 3 and
the acquisition of a new office premises in Tsim Sha
Tsui for the headquarters of the School of Continuing
and Professional Studies. For assets acquired by
funds from the government or government agencies
with conditions attached, the balances of their
aggregate net book value were treated as deferred
capital funds. The total amount in deferred capital
funds increased by 5.5% to $3,608 million as at 30
June 2018.
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Taking into account the operating results achieved
for the financial year 2017/18, the General and
Development Reserve Fund stood at $2.67 billion,
the UGC matching grants fund at $1.44 billion,
and the total restricted funds at $15.96 billion, with
an aggregate total of $20.07 billion to support the
University’s long-term development in meeting its
strategic goals and missions.

Research Activities

In addition to recurrent grants from the UGC
covering basic infrastructure to carry out research
activities and to fund a certain level of research,
the University had also secured substantial funding
through different sources to support specific
research projects. In the financial year 2017/18, a
total of $273 million was recognized as designated
income for research from grants from the UGC and
its Research Grants Council. Another $534 million
came from the private sector and other sources in
the form of sponsorships or donations.

Donations and Benefactions

Donation and benefactions increased by $35 million
or 5.0% to $731 million in the financial year 2017/18.
The University is most grateful to the alumni,
donors, sponsors and friends of the University for
their generous financial support for its academic
development, research activities, scholarships and
capital development programmes.

In addition to the contribution of $28.7 million in
2016/17, the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
donated another $192.1 million in the financial year
2017/18 to support scholarships for outstanding
students and other activities. The University is again
most appreciative of the continuous support from the
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.

Capital Developments

Acquisitions amounting to $806 million was made
for fixed assets during the financial year, with $384
million spent on construction in progress for the
Jockey Club Postgraduate Halls 2 & 3, $264 million
on equipment, furniture and fittings for the purposes
of teaching, research and student development, and
$158 million on premises and related development
projects.
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In response to the Hostel Development Fund
launched by the government with the aim of
addressing the keen demand in student hostels,
a Master Hostel Development Plan has been
formulated for the University and submitted to UGC
in 2018. The detailed design for the 300-place
student hostel for New Asia campus was completed
with project completion targeted in December 2021.
The planning and preliminary design of five new
student hostels to provide additional 1,494 hostel
places are in good progress.

As a socially responsible institution, the University
is committed to promoting a sustainable campus
by embedding green measures in all capital
design in order to reduce energy consumption and
greenhouse gas emissions.

Self-financed Programmes

Dissemination of knowledge is one of the core
functions of the University. As a public institution and
in fulfilment of its role, the University provides learning
opportunities at sub-degree and postgraduate
levels, as well as lifelong learning programmes, to
complement the UGC-funded academic activities.
The main purpose of the University’s self-financed
programmes is to meet community and societal
needs. With increases both in student number and
tuition fee in some programmes, the revenues from
non-UGC funded programmes recorded an increase
of 5.6% to $1,093 million in the year.

The Way Forward

2018 marked a change in the leadership of the
University. The University welcomes Professor
Rocky S. Tuan, an eminent biomedical scientist, as
its eighth Vice-Chancellor, succeeding Professor
Joseph J.Y. Sung. Under Professor Sung’s
visionary leadership, the University achieved many
milestones, including the reversion to the four-year
undergraduate programme, successfully established
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Shenzhen
and initiated the private teaching hospital project.
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The University welcomes the Financial Secretary’s
proposal in his Budget Speech in February 2018
to allocate $2.5 billion for the launch of the Eighth
Matching Grant Scheme for 10 publicly funded post-
secondary education institutions. While details of
the Scheme are yet to be released, the University
will capitalize on the philanthropic culture of the
community and orchestrate its fundraising effort
to solicit more private donations to reinforce its
strategic initiatives and development.

As the University celebrates its 55th anniversary,
| am truly grateful for the unfailing support and
unwavering contributions from the University’s
benefactors, alumni, staff and students. The
University’s growth has come with challenges and
opportunities; it has not only risen to the challenges,
but also embraced the opportunities to shape its
future development. Coupled with the strength in
finance, | am confident that the University will scale
new heights in achieving excellence and innovation
in education and research.

Anthony Neoh
Treasurer
30 October 2018
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BFEPNKRE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2017-2018

BAFSFEE 2017-2018 (The University X&)

Total #8%8 $9,534 million BE T

. Government Subventions
BRF&E R
($4,927 million BEJT)

. Tuition, Programme and Other Fees
BE . RiERHEMKE
($2,120 million HET)

. Interest and Net Investment Income
FERBREFHEE
($838 million E&E T )

. Donations and Benefactions
RIER B
($731 million B&JT)

o Ancillary Services Income
cea TN

($310 million BEJT)

. Other Income
Hibyg A
($608 million &)

3.2% 7.7%

8.8%

Expenditure 2

Total #8%8 $7,914 million BEE& T

. Instruction and Research
HEBRIFE ($5,764 milion BEIT)

. Library
BlZ£E (3256 million BT )

Central Computing Facilities

rh REREEEHE ($159 million BET)

. Other Academic Services
H{thHE RS ($147 million B&T)

. Management and General
EER—MYEE ($359 milion BETT)

6.1% 0 4 .59 Premises and Related Expenses
S /01 9% = BFRAERZE ($723 milion BET)

. Student and General Education Services

BAR—RHEEE ($479 milion BEIT)

. Other Activities
HAthZE ($27 million BETT)

0.4%



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
FEPLKE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2017-2018

BAFERIZE 2017-2018 (The University K22 )

Income Analysis LA 3R

2017
Year Ended 30 June ANB=1H (F42) _

(HK$'M) (%) (HKS$'M) (%)
Government Subventions ERFE BN 4,927 51.7% 4,835 52.3%
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees BE . EEREMINE 2,120 22.2% 2,018 21.9%
Interest and Net Investment Income FMERBEFW 838 8.8% 847 9.2%
Donations and Benefactions LIPS EN 731 7.7% 696 7.5%
Ancillary Services Income B ARFSUIA 310 3.2% 294 3.2%
Other Income HitA 608 6.4% 545 5.9%
Total ($ million) EE (B87n) 9,534 100.0% 9,235 100.0%

Expenditure Analysis 21

Vear Ended 30 une rAz+a e | 200

(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)
Instruction and Research HERFTR 5,764 72.8% 5,683 72.7%
Library EES: 256 3.2% 232 3.0%
Central Computing Facilities rh REREES 159 2.0% 165 2.1%
Other Academic Services H{th B2 AR% 147 1.9% 148 1.9%
Management and General EIER—MYEIR 359 4.5% 388 5.0%
Premises and Related Expenses EFRERAZE 723 9.1% 734 9.4%
Student and General Education Services B4R —MHBEEE 479 6.1% 432 5.5%
Other Activities HithE7H 27 0.4% 29 0.4%
Total ($ million) HWEE (BBT) 7,914 100.0% 7,811 100.0%

Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to the following funding sources

FEEZANDEREERTIIES

Vear Endod 30 une e

(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)
General and Development Reserve Fund —fi¥R B RERES (62) -3.8% 303 21.3%
Matching Grants Fund ECEEE £ 16 1.0% 14 1.0%
Non-Government Funds IERFEM £ 1,668 102.8% 1,108 77.7%
University Development REBRR 1,140 70.3% 906 63.6%
Research Activities HITEED 278 17.1% (125) -8.8%
Capital Projects EEIEH 201 12.4% (122) -8.6%
General Academic Use — BB E 64 3.9% 281 19.7%
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REE RERHES 35 2.1% 153 10.8%
New Colleges HERR 22 1.4% 16 1.1%
Other Activities HithE# (72) -4.4% (1) -0.1%

Total ($ million) HE (587x) 1,622 100.0% 1,425 100.0%



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEPNAS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2017-2018

BAFEHEE 2017-2018 (The University K&3)

Analysis on the financial position of the University as at 30 June of 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
RIB—N\FRIE—CHFNA=+H ' XBRNBHBERRAITOT :

(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars LUB#EE T )

2018
—EN\EFE
Government Funds EXfF & BN & Nor-Covarmmmani Total
ota
Recurrent Non-Recurrent Funds =
i JFER FFBRRE & o
Income YT A 5,302 851 3,381 9,534
Expenditure 5z 5,259 835 1,820 7,914
Surplus
Bit 43 16 1,561 1,620
2017
—E—tFE
Government Funds EUFF & BN & Nom-Covammani Total
ota
Recurrent Non-Recurrent Funds st
T ST FRBERE) &
Income WA 5,136 868 3,231 9,235
Expenditure 5z 4,667 854 2,290 7,811
Surplus
B 469 14 941 1,424
Recurrent Government Funds Non-Recurrent Government Funds Non-government Funds
EEURAEE IR MBFEE ElFsdsi=tkA
HK$'M B EE T
10,000
9,000
8,000 [
el 3,231
7,000 1,820
2,290
6,000
5,000 |
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000 | 1,561 1
14
ol e
Income Income Expenditure Expenditure Surplus 43 Surplus
WA ON BER BER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ABERE

TO THE COUNCIL OF THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HERAPXABRED

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong (“the University”), the Trustees
of the four separately established constituent Colleges, namely
The Trustees of Chung Chi College, The Trustees of New Asia
College, The Trustees of United College and The Trustees of
Shaw College, and CUHK Health Limited, CUHK Medical Centre
Limited, CUHK Medical Clinic Limited and CUHK Medical Centre
Charitable Foundation Limited (collectively “the Group”) set
out on pages 12 to 103, which comprise the Consolidated and
University Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018,
the Consolidated and University Statements of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure, the Consolidated and University
Statements of Changes in Funds and the Consolidated and
University Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the
University as at 30 June 2018 and of their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Audlitor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Council of the University is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the financial report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

BER

AR "1 ) EEMIERE+ - E—8ZE=F&
BRXAR (TXB,)  NEBIRESER  SEERKES
HEERRER  MoERRETRGXERKES » FBFXK
BESERAR - EBPNABESHOHRAR » FEPIKRE
EBDOBRARREEPNABREGEEESEBRAR (51
T REEEE | ) NRAMBRE  EBRREENR -2 —N\FX
A=+HOFE RABHBRAREEEZA L FENRERAE
EENZE  FERABESBEHRNIFERABHEERER - U
REBHERMGE BRI RS EENE -

IR - ZFAUBRRCRES A AT REMNET AT
HREEAEEMATH NRABEERAZR - \EFAA=T

BB RBEZ A EFENMBRELRFEESRE

ERER

HAICRBESESMAEEM (FEBER) ETE - R
FIEER T RAENEEEEARS " RBMAM B RS BRE
AENEE ) BAPEE—SMT - RIBESESHENLEREMA
SEEEDEBTRD (LUTRSH "Rl ) o BRFPBIINASEE
88 WERTTFRIPMEMBRERET - HFIEE - HFIATES
BB EEE AT MW E RIS HER -

SEMBERRNEAGBARSUINER

RBHNRESRHEMESRE - HEESETERMBREN
HWEHER - ETEEGAMBHRRAAFIZEEMRS

BISHREMBRRNBRITEEEMES - BMTTHEEH
iS5 BB REMANAETHE -

EERMINESMBRERNET  AMNEEEREEMES X =
teafEd - EEAMERER RGBS BRERIEMAETEER
FRAT T BRYIERTF R EXIEEESE U TFFEERERBGLAER

ERFFISHITHIE - MRRFESAHMESFEEAERERL -
HMRERSEEE - TEAE @ HAIREEMHRSE -



Responsibilities of the Council for the consolidated
financial statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for
such internal control as the Council determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council
is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Council either intends to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
its responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This reportis made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Statute 12(7) of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’'s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the Group. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

30 October 2018
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXKER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

FaZEBER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

HE_F-N\FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUE#FT517R)

Note 2018 2017
B 5E
Income KA
Government Subventions BT EED 4 4,927,153 4,834,615
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees B . EREREMNE 5 2,122,900 2,020,682
Interest and Net Investment Income ¥ B RInE RN 6 903,308 938,976
Donations and Benefactions b SEEE 7 774,371 740,915
Ancillary Services Income SR FEUT A 8 316,633 300,772
Other Income Hithgt A 9 609,833 549,288
9,654,198 9,385,248
Expenditure ZiH 10
Learning and Research il R AR
Instruction and Research HERME 5,767,381 5,684,890
Library EES: 255,852 231,822
Central Computing Facilities AR ERSEL TR 159,225 164,861
Other Academic Services H B mR% 165,930 177,845
Institutional Support KEFHBIERTS
Management and General BB R—HREIR 389,021 412,314
Premises and Related Expenses EFRERYTH 740,067 744,781
Student and General Education Services BAR—HEEHE 533,152 481,902
Other Activities Hith=E7% 30,194 35,178
8,040,822 7,933,593
Surplus for the year TEERR 1,613,376 1,451,655
Item that will not be classified to ITEEHSEERGH
surplus or deficit EBiEZIER
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit ETERTHERETE 17.1(v) 2,046 1,258
Scheme
Items that may be reclassified HigoESHmoEERNg
subsequently to surplus or deficit siEiaEvIEE
Changes in Fair Value of A ERIRE 234 50,156
Available-for-Sale Investments NRIEEEE)
Release of Revaluation Reserve upon R HH ] A A S 160 (360)
Disposal of Available-for-sale Investments NREEZEEM
B B R
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERHMWNESEEE 1,615,816 1,502,709
Attributable to: BB
Surplus of Recurrent Government SRR S BER 42,793 469,301
Funds transferred to General and BE—-WRBEREGES
Development Reserve Fund
Surplus of Non-recurrent Government JEREE T E B £ R ER 16,147 14,062
Funds transferred from University Grants EEHE SIS
Committee (“UGC”) Matching Grants Fund
Surplus of Non-government Funds FFRFERERER 1,556,876 1,019,346
transferred to Restricted Funds BEEERAAE S
1,615,816 1,502,709

The notes set out on pages 24 to 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NHRE_+NEE-—AS =AM ARIBRERZ 5D -



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEEPXKER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

maMBRRR
AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

—E-/\FXB=1+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU#E#T5t317R)

Note 2018 2017
FEE

Non-Current Assets ERBEE
Fixed Assets BEEEE 15 7,130,616 6,185,050
Investments wE 16 5,695,225 5,331,362
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets BERKIBFIEE 17 9,519 7,412
Prepayments and Other Receivables TR IR R E At LR 18 130,807 90,111
12,966,167 11,613,935

Current Assets MENEE
Investments "E 16 3,901,904 3,443,922
Inventories =78 490 509
Staff Loans HE G 26 212,500 208,156
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FESBRSR ~ FEMATFIER 18 892,981 618,576
Other Receivables Hitb eI TR

Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks R RIRTTREETER 19 14,288,653 12,133,956
Current Liabilities mEEE 19,296,528 16,405,119
Accounts Payable and Accruals FETBRFI R FEET E 20 1,291,485 1,105,221
Provision for Employee Benefits (=R 21 532,585 446,788
Loans and Borrowings (EE 22 75,000 75,274
Deferred Income IR A8 23 392,253 519,133
2,291,323 2,146,416
Net Current Assets mEBEEEE 17,005,205 14.258.703
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERREHas 29,971,372 25,872,638

Non-Current Liabilities JEREIEE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEATBRFR R FEET B 20 82,730 28,100
Provision for Employee Benefits =R 21 247,600 246,406
Loans and Borrowings =T 22 3,562,976 1,427,374
Deferred Income BRI AR 23 823,023 720,143
4,716,329 2,422,023
Deferred Capital Funds BEEEESE 24 3,607,593 3,418,981
NET ASSETS BEFE 21,647,450 20,031,634
Restricted Funds EHEE 11 17,533,633 15,872,090
UGC Funds YEEET 12 4,113,817 4,159,544
TOTAL FUNDS HEH85 21,647,450 20,031,634

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 30 October 2018
KREGN _Z—/\F+A=1+HIEREERRILBITFERRE

/2

Norm#A'N. P. Leung 24§
Chairman of the Council IKE2& X &

mmﬁﬁﬁ;:;;ﬂ

Treasurer A&

G

Rocky S. Tuan E3&£%5

D

Salome Y. P. Lam # 85%
Bursar and Director of Finance BA#5 &

The notes set out on pages 24 to 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NERE_+NEE—BZ =82 AR ERTR 235 -

Vice-Chancellor and President #&&



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
EEPXXEB

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

HEETEBR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

HE-_F-\FRAZTHLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU&#EFT3I7R)

UGC Funds #&&E2 (Note [z 12)

General and UGC uUGC Total
Development Matching  Matching
Reserve Fund Grants - Grants -
Endowment Other Funds
Funds
—ME R E nES BES B
fEmEE [RESECET: ol A e
- BAE: - BHitES
Balance - 1 July 2016 —E-REtHA—H#EER 2,427,230 420,674 994,163 3,842,067
Transfers from/(to) the EE/(B)EEZER 469,301 - 14,062 483,363
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer HE M2 ER (165,886) ) - (165,886)
Balance - 30 June 2017 —2—-tF~A=+HR 2,730,645 420,674 1,008,225 4,159,544
and 1 July 2017 —ES—tFtA—B£8
Transfers from/(to) the BE/(B)EEWRE 42,793 - 16,147 58,940
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer AR (104,667) (1,250) 1,250 (104,667)
Balance - 30 June 2018 ZE-N\FRA=THSERF 2,668,771 419,424 1,025,622 4,113,817

The notes set out on pages 24 to 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.

HENE TN EE—AE=AZMEFARIHREZ B -



Restricted Funds ZHES (Note fifix11)

Capital Endowment  Other Building  Research  Others Investments  Total Total
Funds Funds Restricted Funds Project (Note 11.1) Revaluation Funds
Funds Funds Reserve
BEAS BAEE HtER @#FEH w5RIEHE Hith KESER b BEEBH
A A E-% (BIEE 11.1) fEfs
2,554,072 3,450,961 4,032,902 144,591 778,744 3,575,560 150,028 14,686,858 18,528,925
209,953 400,249 172,704 19,394 (50,438) 217,688 49,796 1,019,346 1,502,709

2,044 (82,794)  (113,759) (17,200) (74,114) 451,709 - 165,886 -
2,766,069 3,768,416 4,091,847 146,785 654,192 4,244,957 199,824 15,872,090 20,031,634
753,108 20,017 664,682 (47,872) 293,564  (127,017) 394 1,556,876 1,615,816
3,846 117,318 82,718 115,602 (15,407)  (206,980) 7,570 104,667 -
3,623,023 3,905,751 4,839,247 214,515 932,349 3,910,960 207,788 17,533,633 21,647,450




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

EEPXXER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HRalERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
BE-F-\FRA=THLEER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU#E#T5t317R)

Note 2018 2017
BiEE
Operating Activities ReEe
Surplus for the Year AEERER 1,613,376 1,451,655
Adjustments for: FHEIFH -
Depreciation e 10 485,954 501,248
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HERTEEUE)/ BB (39) 134
Interest and Net Investment Income BRI E SIS 6 (903,308) (938,976)
Operating Surplus before Changes in EEATEHNIKERNRG 1,195,983 1,014,061
Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Employee Retirement BERIATEFEE L)/ FD (61) 27
Benefit Assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable, FEUTERER ~ FRISFIE R EhFEUL (249,789) 33,072
Prepayments and Other Receivables 2 g/ "L
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories FEZD/GEm) 19 (114)
Increase in Accounts Payable and Accruals FETBRFN R FEET B R 2 100 240,955 193,329
Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits & EnEF 2 2 L0 86,991 19,990
Decrease in Deferred Income BT Z D (190,164) (87,286)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities EEESFIEE R EFEH 1,083,934 1,173,079
Investing Activities B ES
Increase in Time Deposits with FREpEEE =P W ERBFR (2,763,583) (1,882,151)
Original Maturity over Three Months ZIETN
Payment for Capital Expenditure BEARZAN (1,381,127)  (672,164)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HERTEEEMSHUE 645 467
Payment for Purchase of Investments ERRE (998,434) (1,664,734)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HERBRSHIA 666,922 1,405,466
Dividend Received SUhE S 64,427 34,938
Interest Received BUFIE 319,912 218,746
Loans Granted to Staff BB AT (37,520) (95,900)
Loans Repaid by Staff HMEED 33,176 107,410
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities REEEFRERCRE RS (4,095,582) (2,547,922)




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

EREPXKRE

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

HREBHETRER (A
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

HE-F-N\FRAZTHLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU&#FIT517R)

Note 2018 2017
FEE
Financing Activities N =0E )]
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Capital Funds EMEEERES BN/ (L) 188,612 (22,288)
Proceeds from Loans and Borrowings BHAERFTSIE 2,218,000 1,815,000
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff EESHIMEZIRITER 7,000 69,000
Repayment of Secured Loans EEFIERER (6,274) (6,275)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending EEEETHIMEZIRITEN (5,000) (73,000)
to Staff
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities RIEEHMMESEZREIEEE 2,402,338 1,782,437
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash RERREEEYZBORL)AEM (609,310) 407,594
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents REMRETEEY - FVERR 949,260 541,666
- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year BRERRESEY - FLRER 19

The notes set out on pages 24 to 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.
HNENE—+NEE—BE =AM RAAIBRR 8D -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXKER

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

EEHER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

HE_Z-\FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU#E#T5t317R)

Note 2018 2017
B
Income WA
Government Subventions &R 4 4,927,153 4,834,615
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees BE . RRERHEMNE 5 2,119,793 2,017,523
Interest and Net Investment Income FERIRE UL 6 838,093 847,302
Donations and Benefactions Bi= [y SEI=F N 7 731,379 696,460
Ancillary Services Income EENARFEUTA 8 310,102 294,422
Other Income HARA 9 607,379 544,915
9,533,899 9,235,237
Expenditure T H 10
Learning and Research BRI
Instruction and Research HERME 5,764,418 5,682,835
Library BE 255,852 231,822
Central Computing Facilities FROR B RSEL 159,221 164,861
Other Academic Services Hth# 2R 7% 146,717 148,163
Institutional Support KEHENARTE
Management and General BIER—MREIE 359,173 388,105
Premises and Related Expenses BFREMSEH 722,359 734,517
Student and General Education Services BYER—WRHEEH 479,347 431,758
Other Activities Hith=E7% 27,312 29,052
7,914,399 7,811,113
Surplus for the year REERR 1,619,500 1,424,124
Item that will not be reclassified xg%ﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁ’%ﬁ
to surplus or deficit iR IRE
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit ERTan LV 17.1(v) 2,046 1,258
Scheme
Total comprehensive income for the year ZANEEZEWEEEE 1,621,546 1,425,382
Attributable to: BER:
Surplus of Recurrent Government EEMRREERER 42,793 469,301
Funds transferred to General and BE W RBEEMEGES
Development Reserve Fund
Surplus of Non-recurrent IS E BT E B & R ER 16,147 14,062
Government Funds transferred EEYE S YHElS
from UGC Matching Grants Fund
Surplus of Non-government Funds FHFER&RER 1,562,606 942,019
transferred to Restricted Funds BEEERAEE
1,621,546 1,425,382

The notes set out on pages 24 to 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JEHNE—TNEE—BT =AM RAIHERERZ 8D -




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPN KR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BRI E
AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

—E2-A\EXA=1+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& T 531R)

Note 2018 2017
BiEE

Non-Current Assets ERENEE
Investments in Subsidiaries RIBARMNIRE 13 610,257 610,257
Fixed Assets ElEEE 15 6,102,886 5,780,318
Investments "E 16 5,167,927 4,831,154
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets BERAKIEHEE 17 9,519 7,412
Prepayments and Other Receivables TR FIE R H At LR 18 53,490 53,490
11,944,079 11,282,631

Current Assets MENEE
Investments wE 16 3,522,608 3,164,717
Staff Loans B G 26 212,500 208,156
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEUBRSR ~ FERTFIE R 18 897,272 619,477
Other Receivables E TR
Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks & RIRTTRREAERR 19 9,910,605 9,417,669
14,542,985 13,410,019
Current Liabilities mEaE

Accounts Payable and Accruals FETBRFA R FEETE 20 1,321,964 1,227,956
Provision for Employee Benefits & EnaF %S| 21 528,237 443,943
Loans and Borrowings LR 22 75,000 75,274
Deferred Income IRIEUT S 23 391,619 518,496
2,316,820 2,265,669
Net Current Assets mENEERE 12,226,165 11,144,350
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities HEERRBESE 24,170,244 22,426,981

Non-Current Liabilities EREEE
Provision for Employee Benefits & BnaF 2% 21 244,960 244,901
Loans and Borrowings 1&5R 22 16,000 20,000
Deferred Income RIS 23 229,739 292,693
490,699 557,594
Deferred Capital Funds EEEEREE 24 3,607,593 3,418,981
NET ASSETS BERE 20,071,952 18,450,406
Restricted Funds EHEE 11 15,958,135 14,290,862
UGC Funds HEGgEE 12 4,113,817 4,159,544
TOTAL FUNDS BB 20,071,952 18,450,406

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 30 October 2018
KREGN_Z—/\F+A 57 U AR SRR B T SRR

Normdh N. P. Leung 2 J5/g

Chairman of the Council RE&EF

mﬂ

Treasurer A&

Rocky S. Tuan E¥E=%
Vice-Chancellor and President #&&

Salorﬁe Y. P. Lam #AH5%
Bursar and Director of Finance Bf#& &

The notes set out on pages 24 to 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NENE_TNEE—BZT=H M AARIBFRTRZ—E5 -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEEPXXB
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

ETEBHR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

HE—E-\FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU&#F7T517R)

UGC Funds #E& &% (Note i3 12)

General and UGC uUGC Total
Development Matching  Matching
Reserve Fund  Grants - Grants -
Endowment Other Funds
Funds
—RE R AR HES HEE ]
fEiFEE YW EYES
- BAEs - HttES
Balance - 1 July 2016 —E2—RFtH—RiE 2,427,230 420,674 994,163 3,842,067
Transfers from/(to) the BR/(B)2ENZE 469,301 - 14,062 483,363
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer e zER (165,886) ) - (165,886)
Balance - 30 June 2017 —E—-tFRA=+THR 2,730,645 420,674 1,008,225 4,159,544
and 1 July 2017 —E—tFtRA—RA%&R
Transfers from/(to) the E/(B)EElEE 42,793 - 16,147 58,940
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer AL ER (104,667) (1,250) 1,250  (104,667)
Balance - 30 June 2018 —E-\FXA=1TH&E 2.668,771 419,424 1,025,622 4,113,817

The notes set out on pages 24 to 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JEHRE—TNEE—BS =AM RAIHERERZ 8D -



Restricted Funds ZHE#£ (Note Bffax 11)

Capital Endowment Other Building Research Others Total Total
Funds Funds Restricted Funds Project (Note 11.2) Funds
Funds Funds
BEEED BAEE HittZH EEOL]S W5IaHE HAt ] HE4E
B B & (BffEE 11.2)
2,480,382 3,230,307 3,653,015 144,946 778,744 2,895,563 13,182,957 17,025,024
(119,045) 376,269 159,409 19,394 (50,438) 556,430 942,019 1,425,382
- (82,961) (82,732) (17,200) (74,114) 422,893 165,886 -
2,361,337 3,623,615 3,729,692 147,140 654,192 3,874,886 14,290,862 18,450,406
133,956 10,005 645,383 (47,872) 293,564 527,570 1,562,606 1,621,546
- 130,222 57,457 115,247 (15,407) (182,852) 104,667 -
2,495,293 3,663,842 4,432,532 214,515 932,349 4,219,604 15,958,135 20,071,952
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEEPXXE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
BE-—F-\FRA=THLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU&#FIT517R)

Note 2018 2017
FEE
Operating Activities wEEE
Surplus for the Year REERE 1,619,500 1,424,124
Adjustments for: JAEIEH -
Depreciation e 10 482,983 498,173
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HERTEE EUES)/ B8 (39) 134
Interest and Net Investment Income T ERIRE RS 6 (838,093)  (847,302)
Operating Surplus before Changes in CESTEHNZEERN 1,264,351 1,075,129
Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Employee Retirement BERKIEFIEEZ LM/ FHD (61) 27
Benefit Assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable, FEUNBRFR ~ FEATFIE R H Mt FEUL (219,087) 64,477
Prepayments and Other Receivables 2 (B’
Increase in Accounts Payable FEISBRFN R FEST & FH 2 1870 94,008 67,335
and Accruals
Increase in Provision for Employee & SnaF 2 fi.2 1 m 84,353 19,395
Benefits
Decrease in Deferred Income B TS 2 R (189,831) (88,353)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities EEFEEREEZREFEH 1,033,733 1,138,010
Investing Activities 1BEEE
Increase in Time Deposits with FREEA=ERNERTFR (806,756) (96,884)
Maturity Period over Three Months Z A&
Payment for Capital Expenditure f=Z N RAREN (806,157)  (357,441)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HERBEEERSIIR 645 467
Payment for Purchase of Investments ERRE (851,469) (1,644,209)
Payment for Investment in a Subsidary BERMEAT - (400,000)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HEREMSRUR 634,083 1,357,336
Dividend Received B 36,310 11,860
Interest Received BHFIE 265,797 203,173
Loans Granted to Staff 3 A=R (37,520) (95,900)
Loans Repaid by Staff i B8 33,176 107,410
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities BREEHFAERZREFE (1,531,891)  (914,188)




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEEPXXE
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

BRERER (W)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

HE_T-N\FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU&#FIT517R)

Note 2018 2017
BIEE
Financing Activities B RS
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Capital Funds BB RS 2B/ G2 188,612 (22,288)
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff EETHI S 2 RITER 7,000 69,000
Repayment of Secured Loans HEREMER (6,274) (6,275)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending HRBETHHE ZRITER (5,000) (73,000)
to Staff
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Financing RIZEEIEREL/(ER)ZBEEBE 184,338 (32,563)
Activities
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash RERIREFEY 2B L)EM (313,820) 191,259
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERREEEY - FOER 585,217 393,958
- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RERFEEEY - FRER 19 271,397 585,217

The notes set out on pages 24 to 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NENE_FTNEE—BE =AM AR ERTR 255 -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEEPXXE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES R MIEE

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong which includes Morningside College,
S.H. Ho College, C.W. Chu College, Wu Yee Sun
College, and Lee Woo Sing College (collectively
“the University”), the Trustees of the four separately
established constituent Colleges, namely The
Trustees of Chung Chi College, The Trustees of New
Asia College, The Trustees of United College and
The Trustees of Shaw College, and CUHK Health
Limited, CUHK Medical Centre Limited, CUHK
Medical Clinic Limited and CUHK Medical Centre
Charitable Foundation Limited (collectively “the
Group”). The Trustees of these constituent Colleges
were incorporated under The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance (“the Ordinance”). As these
constituent Colleges function to complement the
University in the provision of a balanced, holistic
education which also embodies different intellectual
and cultural traditions, management of the University
is of the opinion that the Trustees of these constituent
Colleges are created to accomplish academic
and related objectives, consistent with those of
the University. Pursuant to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements, the consolidated financial statements
of the University include the financial results and
assets and liabilities relating to the Trustees of the
four separately established constituent Colleges.
The aggregate surplus for the year ended 30 June
2018 of the Trustees of these four separately
established constituent Colleges amounted to $28
million (2017: $116 million) and their aggregate net
assets at the end of the reporting period amounted
to $1,648 million (2017: $1,620 million).

The consolidated financial statements have
not incorporated the financial statements of the
University’s subsidiaries, except for CUHK Health
Limited, CUHK Medical Centre Limited, CUHK
Medical Clinic Limited and CUHK Medical Centre
Charitable Foundation Limited which have been
consolidated into the Group’s financial statements,
as management is of the opinion that their aggregate
net assets and net surplus/deficit, which would have
constituted 1.7% (2017: 1.7%) and 1.3% (2017:
0.8%) of the respective consolidated totals, are
insignificant.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These financial statements also comply with
the Statement of Recommended Practice
(“SORP”) for institutions funded by the
University Grants Committee (“UGC”) in Hong
Kong. Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
University.

None of these impact on the accounting
policies of the Group and the University.
However, additional disclosure has been
included in note 19(b) to satisfy the new
disclosure requirements introduced by the
amendment to HKAS 7, Statement of cash
flows: Disclosure initiative, which require
entities to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except as otherwise stated in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions, and
cash flows and any unrealised surplus arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised deficit resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

In the University’s Statement of Financial Position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2.9), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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2.4 Fixed Assets

Items of Fixed Assets, other than Construction
In Progress and Art Collection, are stated in
the Statement of Financial Position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2.9).

Construction In Progress represents buildings and
other fixed assets under construction, and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses (see note 2.9)
and is not depreciated. Construction In Progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when completed and is ready for use.

Art Collection is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2.9). The residual value of Art
Collection is expected to be equal to or greater than
the carrying amount, therefore Art Collection is not
depreciated.

Leasehold Land granted by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the
Government”) for use by the University is recorded
at nil value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives or economic lives, whichever
is shorter, as follows:
Interest in Leasehold Land
held for Own Use under
Operating Leases

Over the remaining
lease term

Buildings Shorter of remaining
lease term and 40
years

Equipment, Furniture 3-10 years

and Fittings

Shorter of useful
life and duration of

project

Assets acquired for
Research Projects

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of a fixed asset are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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2.6

Investment Properties

Investment Properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 2.6) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for
currently undetermined future use.

Investment Properties are stated in the Statement
of Financial Position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2.9).
Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Rental
income from Investment Properties is accounted for
as described in note 2.13(v).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
investment properties, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives of
investment properties are the same as for buildings
or interest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases as shown in note 2.4.

Leased Assets

Leases of assets under which the lessor has not
transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership
are classified as operating leases, except for
property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis.

(i) Assets Held for Use in Operating Leases

Where the Group or the University leases out
assets under operating leases, the assets are
included in the Statement of Financial Position
according to their nature and depreciated in
accordance with the accounting policies as set
out in note 2.4. Income arising from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with the
income recognition policies, as set out in note
2.13(v).
(i) Operating Lease Charges

Where the Group or the University has the use
of assets under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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Investments

The Group’s and the University’s policies for
investments in securities other than investments in
subsidiaries are as follows:

(i) Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
University have the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
are initially recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are stated in the
Statement of Financial Position at amortised
cost less impairment losses (see note 2.9).

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

(i) Investments in equity securities that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.9).

(iv) Limited Partnership investment and alternative
investments are initially recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(v) Other investments in securities are classified
as available-for-sale securities and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised directly in
investment revaluation reserve, except for
impairment losses (see note 2.9) and, in the
case of monetary items such as debt securities,
foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised directly in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in investment revaluation reserve is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.
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2.8

2.9

(vi)Investments in securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group and/or
the University commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2.9), except where the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Impairment of Assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
follows:
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For unquoted equity securities and receivables
that are carried at cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
receivables are reversed if in a subsequent
period the amount of the impairment loss
decreases. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised in investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

Impairment losses recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised directly in investment
revaluation reserve.
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(i) Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that Fixed Assets and
Investments in Subsidiaries in the University’s
Statement of Financial Position may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. When an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independently of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of the asset or
assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversal of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

Areversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

2.10 Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
Equivalents are held for meeting short-term liquidity
requirements, rather than for investment purposes.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the University
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Income Recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received/receivable. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group or the University and the income
and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, income is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Government Subventions

Recurrent grants for general purposes are
recognised as income when the grants have
been received or are receivable from the
University Grants Committee (“UGC”). Any
such grants, which are received in excess of
the related expenses incurred are transferred
to the General and Development Reserve
Fund in the reporting period in accordance
with prevailing UGC guidelines.
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(v)

Matching grants are recognised as income
when the grants have been received or are
receivable from the UGC.

Recurrent grants and earmarked grants for
specific purpose spent on capital expenditure
are initially recorded in Deferred Capital Funds
and are recognised as income over the useful
lives of the related assets when the assets
are put into use, to the extent of the related
depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

Earmarked grants for specific purposes
are recognised as income to the extent of
the related expenditure incurred during the
reporting period.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Dividend

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Tuition, programme and other fees

Tuition, programme and other fees are
recognised on an accrual basis and unearned
fees are treated as receipts in advance.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Donations and benefactions

Donations and benefactions in cash and cash
equivalents or other investment instruments
for general purpose are recognised as income
at fair values when it is probable that they will
be received, which is generally upon receipt of
cash. Donations and Benefactions for specific
purposes designated by the donors are initially
recognised as deferred income when received,
and then as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the year.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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(vii) Other service income

Other service income is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure when the related service is
rendered.

2.14 Books and Periodicals

Library books and periodicals are written off to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred.

2.15 Employee Benefits

(i)

(iif)

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the Group or the University of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by the employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment with an employee
who has been in continuous employment of
not less than two years. The gratuity, together
with the total amount of the University’s
contributions to a particular retirement scheme,
will add up to 10% or 15% of the appointee’s
basic salary drawn during the contract period.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
schemes, including Mandatory Provident
Funds (“MPF”) as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

The net obligation in respect of a defined benefit
retirement scheme is calculated separately by
estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present
value and the fair value of any scheme assets
is deducted. The calculation is performed by
a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results
in a benefit to the Group or the University,
the recognised asset is limited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the scheme
or reductions in future contributions to the
scheme.

(vii)

HAARFEUIA

HARBRAEEHRARBERHRNEEIS
TAFERD ©

2.14 EIEKHTI

7 RS B S R TR ER B 2 El R
i o

2.15 EEEH

0)

(iD)

(iii)

(iv)

Fe o BFER  BEERMEZEIFEBEEF

BRAE - REAAREIE AR R AR

MWEEAALR - LB HEEEMSEELES
& AlILLFERRRRERER -

HmME SR EBIBETONRENRE ST
PRRFSZ T o B &ER ARG ERAESETEIRH
& aHAZEENRSHVIHANELFENE
DZTEERZTA -

FREMIAGEAGTE - BFREEHEIEATES
&G FRsaEtE 2 5 N BEEEERERE
Wz ARSI

FEFRBAGTEFRE @ I BRRENERN
RBIEATiR M RIS AR (A ET 2 R F T RE
ZFRF LUTIRETEHIRE - WA ETEIA
BEZAREE - S EREBHSERBEERLL
TREARTRIRFIEAUART B - MFTENRRBAS
BRSSP E NG - RIFESFEE B IR AT 8
FS B ER A E R R TS AV BRI
ZIR{ERMR -

35



Service cost and net interest expenses/
(income) on the net defined benefit liability/
(asset) are recognised in the line item of staff
cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. Current service cost
is measured as the increase in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current period.
When the benefits of a scheme are changed
or when a scheme is curtailed, the portion of
the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment,
is recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure at
the earlier of when the scheme amendment
or curtailment occurs and when related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are
recognised. Net interest expenses/(income)
for the period is determined by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
to the net defined benefit liability/(asset).
The discount rate is the yield at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s or the University’s
obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined
benefit retirement schemes are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in restricted funds.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)) and
any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset)).

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group or the University can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

2.16 Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.
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Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

2.17 Related Parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii)A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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2.18 Taxation 2.18 FiIE

The University is exempted from payment of Hong EHAMYABESERNISIEHBESIERT T » WEAGE
Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland 3 EFEF o
Revenue Ordinance.

3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
ABRERXBHRESEIA K32

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUA#FTTIIR)
The Group
KEARERE
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter- 2018
Activities IR E G ERNEED Segment Total
Self-Financed Research Other Tr,an_saCt_lon
Elimination

Programmes  Activites  Activities

HESEH 5BLESRRE HEs HtEs HEEZX b

&g iR
Revenue WA
Government Subventions ~ EUFEED 4,653,373 1,107 229,585 43,088 - 4,927,153
Tuition, Programme and BE . FRER 1,026,732 1,096,163 - 12 (7) 2,122,900
Other Fees HAti &
Interest and Net Investment  FIERIZEF 169,012 61,913 4,070 668,313 - 903,308
Income ey
Donations and Benefactions  8HE K85k - 3,217 96,766 674,388 - 774,371
Ancillary Services Income  EHEIBRFEUIA 22,248 2,601 - 291,809 (25) 316,633
Other Income Hug A 13,910 45,766 203,888 347,057 (788) 609,833
5,885,275 1,210,767 534,309 2,024,667  (820) 9,654,198
Expenditure Zi

Learning and Research BiliRE
Instruction and Research HEBRME 3,880,422 998,549 502,439 386,059 (88) 5,767,381

Library EES-H 248,780 - - 7,072 - 255,852

Central Computing Facilites AR EEZHE 137,828 - - 21,393 4 159,225

Other Academic Services H it 2 PR% 132,771 16,168 - 17,664 (673) 165,930

Institutional Support PN R

Management and General ~ ‘EIER—A%EIE 349,034 - - 39,961 26 389,021

Premises and Related TR aELy 655,036 - - 85,031 - 740,067
Expenses

Student and General BaE By 182,765 - - 350,476 (89) 533,152
Education Services =g

Other Activities Hitt=% 13,223 - - 16,971 - 30,194

5,599,859 1,014,717 502,439 924,627 (820) 8,040,822

Surplus for the year TEEB 285,416 196,050 31,870 1,100,040 - 1,613,376




3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

(CONTINUED)
REEERASRESBBARZH (H)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TTIIR)
The Group
KEARRE
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter- 2017
Activities IFHEEEEEED Segment Total
Self-Financed Research Other Tr?n?action
Programmes  Activities  Activities Elimination
HWARHE areERe MrEs HiEn SHEZS R
JEEN SR
Revenue KA
Government Subventions BUFERD 4,532,455 3,077 258,300 40,783 - 4,834,615
Tuition, Programme and 2% RER 982,867 1,037,965 - 86  (236) 2,020,682
Other Fees HitwgE
Interest and Net Investment IR RIREF 157,489 66,277 3,627 711,583 - 938,976
Income s
Donations and Benefactions ~ #RHE K24R7R - 6,851 82,855 651,209 - 740,915
Ancillary Services Income  HBIBRFFUIA 16,867 1,069 - 282,864 (28) 300,772
Other Income Hbug A 17,944 52,076 129,196 350,109 (37) 549,288
5,707,622 1,167,315 473,978 2,036,634 (301) 9,385,248
Expenditure 2
Learning and Research Bili Rz
Instruction and Research ~ H2RIFE 3,694,113 1,000,725 477,372 512,715 (35) 5,684,890
Library EES:H 225,135 - - 6,687 - 231,822
Central Computing Facilites ~HRERELTE 132,086 - - 32,775 - 164,861
Other Academic Services  Hth# 2R 128,894 20,737 - 28214 - 177,845
Institutional Support KREGHBhARTE
Management and General ~ EIER—M%EIE 309,128 - - 103,186 - 412,314
Premises and Related ETErREE%y 657,910 - - 86,871 - 744,781
Expenses
Student and General BahR—pys 171,880 - - 310,288  (266) 481,902
Education Services E=pi
Other Activities HithE=5% 11,946 - - 23,232 - 35,178
5,331,092 1,021,462 477,372 1,103,968 (301) 7,933,593
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year I8 EE R 8f/(E518) 376,530 145,853 (3,394) 932,666 -

1,451,655
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

(CONTINUED)
REBEERABHREIBWARZHE ()

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LUAETTIIR)

The University

KE
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter- 2018
Activities IR E S ERNEED Segment Total
Self-Financed Research Other Trén?’aCt_lon
Programmes Activities  Activities Elimination
HEGEE BBLERRE MR Hirds HIBZR #IEE
JEED iR
Revenue WA
Government Subventions ~ BUFE&ER) 4,653,373 1,107 229,585 43,088 - 4,927,153
Tuition, Programme and BE . .FER 1,026,732 1,093,061 - - - 2,119,793
Other Fees Hitw g
Interest and Net Investment IR RIHEF 169,012 61,913 4,070 603,098 - 838,093
Income ey
Donations and Benefactions ~ $8HE K85k - 2,012 96,766 632,601 - 731,379
Ancillary Services Income  EHBIBRFEUIA 22,248 2,601 - 285,253 - 310,102
Other Income HAtg A 13,910 45,721 203,888 343,860 - 607,379
5,885,275 1,206,415 534,309 1,907,900 - 9,633,899
Expenditure %
Learning and Research BiiRR
Instruction and Research HE KM 3,880,422 998,549 502,439 383,008 - 5,764,418
Library EE:G 248,780 - - 7,072 - 255,852
Central Computing Facilites A HREELHE 137,828 - - 21,393 - 159,221
Other Academic Services Hith# 2R 132,771 3,134 - 10,812 - 146,717
Institutional Support KEAGHEN AR 75
Management and General ~ EIER—MFEIE 349,034 - - 10,139 - 359,173
Premises and Related EBFRE/M%E 655,036 - - 67,323 - 722,359
Expenses
Student and General BAR—MHE 182,765 - - 296,582 - 479,347
Education Services E b
Other Activities Hith=75 13,223 - - 14,089 - 27,312
5,599,859 1,001,683 502,439 810,418 - 7,914,399
Surplus for the year TEERLR 285,416 204,732 31,870 1,097,482 - 1,619,500




3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

(CONTINUED)
REBRERABHEIBRARZH (48)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(LU T TIIR)

The University

KE
UGC-Funded Non-UGC-Funded Activities Inter- 2017
Activities I ESEEEE Segment Total
Self-Financed Research Other Tr?n_saCt_ion
Programmes Activities  Activities Elimination
HESEN gBELERR FREs  HiUdg HEBEZ #HIgE
JEED iR
Revenue WA
Government Subventions ~ EUFEED 4,532,455 3,077 258,300 40,783 - 4,834,615
Tuition, Programme and 8% RExR 982,867 1,034,656 - - - 2,017,523
Other Fees Ht e
Interest and Net Investment  FIERIHEF 157,489 66,277 3,627 619,909 - 847,302
Income ey
Donations and Benefactions  8HE Ki85K - 232 82,855 613,373 - 696,460
Ancillary Services Income  EHEIARFEUTA 16,867 1,069 - 276,486 - 294,422
Other Income Hbug A 17,944 52,037 129,196 345,738 - 544,915
5,707,622 1,157,348 473,978 1,896,289 - 9,235,237
Expenditure Zi
Learning and Research BiiRE
Instruction and Research HEBRNE 3,694,113 1,000,725 477,372 510,625 - 5,682,835
Library BEES: 225,135 - - 6,687 - 231,822
Central Computing Facilites SR EEZHE 132,086 - - 32,775 - 164,861
Other Academic Services — EAtiH 2R 128,894 6,614 - 12,655 - 148,163
Institutional Support KE BN AR %
Management and General ~ EIER—MEIE 309,128 - - 78,977 - 388,105
Premises and Related BFERE/RYEE 657,910 - - 76,607 - 734,517
Expenses
Student and General BER—MHE 171,880 - - 259,878 - 431,758
Education Services Epi
Other Activities Hith==5% 11,946 - - 17,106 - 29,052
5,331,092 1,007,339 477,372 995,310 - 7,811,113
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year ZNSEER8}/(E5#8) 376,530 150,009 (3,394) 900,979 - 1,424124
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE GROUP’S AND THE UNIVERSITY’S INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
(CONTINUED)

ABRERKXBHEDBWARZE (F)

Note: (1) Inter-segment transactions mainly included overhead recovered from self-financed programmes,
externally-funded activities and costs recovered for the services provided among UGC-funded and
non-UGC-funded activities.

(2) These disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of the SORP for the
UGC-funded Institutions. The reported segments are defined by source of funding. The disclosures
are not designed to fully comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating Segments. The SORP
is intended to complement HKFRSs, covering areas which are unique to the UGC-funded institutions.

iz (1) NEEZZZERAEEELERE  INIBEMRESRAE SR RIFNE SR BEE TR HAIARIEIN
EERER -
(2) BRADEHHREZKRBEIIZHESERRERLERNERK - MENEHESRENE - KENENILTZE
BT TEHEEBUHMESEREME TEEDE, NEXK - BREASERREBMBREER - HE
HESEBRRIERMTT -

Cost allocation principles for UGC-funded and non-UGC funded activities

The principles for cost allocation and overhead recovery of the University are:

* No cross subsidisation between UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities;

« All direct costs which can be separately attributable to specific activities should be fully taken up and
borne by the activities;

« All indirect costs, such as centrally provided facilities, administrative and support services, which
cannot be separately identified to specific activities, are allocated to segments as overhead recovery
according to the University’s internal policy.
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The University’s policy on overhead recovery

The self-financed programmes are subject to overhead charges ranging from 13% to 26% of the total
income of the programmes, of which are depending on whether the programmes are running on part-time
or full-time mode, and are held off-campus or on-campus.

For projects funded by UGC or The Research Grants Council (‘RGC”), there is no overhead charge since
on-costs are already provided by UGC or RGC to the University to cover indirect costs. For other externally-
funded research and knowledge transfer grants, overhead is charged according to the University’s policy
on Research, Intellectual Property and Knowledge Transfer. The normal rate is charged at a range of
15% to 25% on direct costs. The charging percentage varies with reference to the operation mode of the
grants. No overhead shall be charged on donations or gifts.

XEBEARWEIREEHMBR
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS  HIFF&8)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB T ITFI7R)

The Group and the University

KERER K&
2018 2017
Subventions from UGC WEEEH
Block Grants BREWEIS 3,822,251 3,814,111
Supplementary Grants B 260,284 163,752
4,082,535 3,977,863
Earmarked Grants BT A EHEE
Research Grants MM 255,083 219,916
Housing Benefits EEiaF] 19,143 18,956
Area of Excellence =Pt SETEh e 17,614 13,513
Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences ARF R R B L 1,375 2,807
Knowledge Transfer Activities HEEERZ IS ED 14,268 15,068
Other Earmarked Grants HitngEREwEE2 29,660 21,154
Rates and Government Rent Refund REE AR B AR 65,896 65,096
Capital Grants and Alterations, Additions, ~ EE#HEh&EECE - Mg 167,799 198,082
Repairs and Improvements (‘AA&I”) HHE R = T 2288
Block Allocation
4,653,373 4,532,455
Grants from Government Agencies B HER®R 273,780 302,160

4,927,153

4,834,615
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fic 44 Bh =

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Matching Grants

(LLAETTIIR)

Matching Donations
Grants
[ EE e EiF

Matching Donations
Grants
Bc¥iwhBie B

The Group The University
KEAREEE KE
2018 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year FAEER 1,428,899 1,537,584 1,428,899 1,450,882
Income (Note) WA (BEEE)
Grants/Donation fHEh 2 /185N - - - -
Interest and Net Investment Income ¥ B RIFEFULE 72,360 110,682 72,360 107,957
72,360 110,682 72,360 107,957
Expenditure SH
Teaching and Research HEBRARE 26,506 54,162 26,506 54,050
Student Exchange Activities BYITEED 5,260 5,346 5,260 5,345
Student Development BAE 21,934 5,947 21,934 2,501
Scholarships BB E 4,752 13,283 4,752 10,767
Bursaries B - 275 - 179
Capital Projects HiEIEH - 31,034 - 31,034
58,452 110,047 58,452 103,876
Transfer from Capital Fund BEREEES 2,239 36,941 2,239 36,919
Balance - End of Year FHEAEER 1,445,046 1,575,160 1,445,046 1,491,882
The Group The University
KEAREEE KE
2017 2017
Balance - Beginning of Year FiEER 1,414,837 1,506,470 1,414,837 1,420,908
Income (Note) A (BEEE)
Grants/Donation B2 /185N - - - -
Interest and Net Investment Income | & RI% & R IEE 76,459 135,386 76,459 130,724
76,459 135,386 76,459 130,724
Expenditure ZH
Teaching and Research BERME 30,539 86,246 30,539 86,242
Student Exchange Activities B RIS ED 4,038 4,251 4,038 4,251
Student Development B SR 25,964 6,130 25,964 4,624
Scholarships B S 5,089 15,115 5,089 13,109
Bursaries B - 276 - 203
Capital Projects E=SESE]S| - 29,081 - 29,081
65,630 141,099 65,630 137,510
Transfer from Capital Fund BEEEEES 3,233 36,827 3,233 36,760
Balance - End of Year FieAEER 1,428,899 1,428,899 1,450,882

1,537,584




Note: For Matching Grant Schemes, private donations secured for purposes including construction of campus
buildings and scholarships but excluding self-financed activities were matched. Grants were awarded on
a dollar-for-dollar matching basis up to $60 million and on a $1 for $2 matching basis (i.e $1 Government
Grant for every $2 donation) for amounts beyond $60 million and limited to an overall total of $600 million
for each institute. There were no matching grants received during the year (2017: Nil).

BieE: ECYttBhSEtEI R HAMBENAANBREERNEEKE RIELE  BTEEARBE BB EhEX
EATERRFEAXEI—TH—TRLERGE - KRR —THR eIt REN BT AR AIF
B —TBUSHEIR)ETE - MBEESS AISEUFHEEIHNET - RAFEXBEERABUZH R HEE
g - CE—tHE: En)

4.2 Matching Grants for Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

S B4 ARERE S EIRHHEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUEETFTHIR)

The Group and the University

KBHBERAZ
Matching Donation Matching Donation
Grants Grants
BoitdBne E=E [ERE E=E
2018 2017
Balance - Beginning of Year  SF#l458% 5,790 144 4,015 174
Income A
Grants/Donations HHBN& /18R - - 2,400 4,800
Interest and Net Investment FMERRES 116 152 100 170
Income g
116 152 2,500 4,970
Expenditure Eegunt
Programme Costs THEMA®
Academic Related Programs Sl ERAIRE 250 - 179 -
Career Related Programs FMEMEIEE 59 142 86 136
Cultural Related Programs XActERaIEE 485 2 399 64
Service Related Programs BRF5+ERA1IE E 58 - 61 -
Establishment of endowment I BAESE - - - 4,800
fund (Note 1) (BFEE 1)
852 144 725 5,000

Balance - End of Year (Note 2) fF£2456% (MizE 2) 5,054 152 5,790 144

Note: (1) The matched donation of $4.8 million was stipulated by the donor to manage as an endowment
fund which should remain intact in perpetuity and the annual payout received within the Scheme
period would be used under the Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students.

(2) The balance is included in the deferred income (Note 23).

(3) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the matching and use of the
matching grants under the Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students as set
out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2017-18.

fiizE: (1) WENA+ETZEHREHBRERTEEAEAES  BIEARESBRETE - M EIMEAENESE

WANE LB AR SRS -

(2) HEACEBTEREREEA (FTEE23) -

(3) MZB—t/—\FEREEMRE L BLEREEET B SR (FiEmPECHHEI & WA REREFRM
El
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4.3 Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“SSE”)
F RSB ZREEE TS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUE#TITIIR)
The Group and the University
KREBBERKE
The University excluding CUSCS* CuSscCs*
RETEIFEEEEEMR EREEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
Balance - Beginning of Year TR 5,686 16,228 650 3,648
Income WA
Grants received/(refunded) EU/GRENEED 594 (6,764) 1,165  (2,557)
Interest and Net Investment Income F| B RIFE F i 91 196 25 43
685 (6,568) 1,190 (2,514)
Expenditure S H
Student Exchange Scholarships BT RRES 3,499 3,974 282 484
3,499 3,974 282 484
Balance - End of Year (Note) FREes D 2,872 5,686 1,558 650
* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.
Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (Note 23).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under SSE
as set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2017-18.
MiEE: (1) #ERASBEEEEREA (FiFE23)
(2) RZB—t/—\FEARBENE LREBINR BB R FERm P IR R AMEA -
4.4 Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students (“SSEBR”)

FHESGFIE T —F—K. WERRENE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTIIR)
The Group and the University

KEBHEERKS
The University excluding CUSCS* Cuscs*
KBTS EEEZER BEHEEER
2018 2017 2018 2017

Balance - Beginning of Year FEELR 6,337 7,000 661 739
Income A

Grants refunded REEED (4,704) - (242) -

Interest and Net Investment Income I8 Bi%& R 79 121 12 13

(4,625) 121 (230) 13
Expenditure S H

Student Exchange Scholarships BAZ RS S 900 784 26 91

900 784 26 91

Balance - End of Year (Note) FiRaEes (BIED) 812 6,337 405 661

* CUSCS represents School of Continuing and Professional Studies.
Note: (1) The balance is included in the deferred income (Note 23).
(2) The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under
SSEBR as set out in the Operating Guide for the financial year 2017-18.
ek (1) HEFCEETREEWEA FiEE23) -
(2) RE2—t/—\FEARBERFE L24RTF ' —F—%, HEREBE SR FERm PR R IR
AN o



TUITION, PROGRAMME AND OTHER FEES

2 - RERHEMKE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUE#FIT5I7R)
The Group The University
KEARERS KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
UGC-Funded Programmes HESEMRE
Tuition Fees 25 1,010,305 967,334 1,010,305 967,334
Programme and Other Fees FREREMNE 16,427 15,533 16,427 15,533
Non-UGC-Funded Programmes EHEFERE
Tuition Fees 2E 1,086,574 1,028,754 1,083,472 1,025,605
Programme and Other Fees FREREMNE 9,594 9,061 9,589 9,051
2,122,900 2,020,682 2,119,793 2,017,523
INTEREST AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME FERGE TR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUS#ET T5I7R) o
The Group The University
KEREEE KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
Interest Income from Listed Securities RS BUEE 85,599 58,665 81,444 54,568
Interest Income from Unlisted Securities  JE_E &5 Sl 45533 30,494 45,506 30,467
Interest Income from Time Deposits THITFEFF B 198,929 149,937 186,136 138,866
Net Realised and Unrealised HmiEs 288 Rk 487,216 639,689 469,661 590,146
Gain on Other Securities BRI SER
Net Realised and Unrealised Exchange E#EIRKFRERZINE 20,488 9,048 17,969 5,642
Gain from Time Deposits SIS
Dividends from Listed and R IEETHIES 65,289 51,143 37,123 27,613
Unlisted Securities B% BUES
Other Investment Income HtigEUnEs 254 - 254 -
903,308 938,976 838,093 847,302
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7.

Note:

LhEEH

DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS

EEEEPNE RN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& ITHI7R)

The Group The University
KEBERE PN

2018 2017 2018 2017
Capital Projects AEIEH 71,355 15,370 57,614 13,681
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries BES RERHES 46,276 43,999 29,987 29,035
Research Activities FItEED 96,902 82,855 96,902 82,855
Development of Morningside College ~ RERRHEER 1,823 2,198 1,823 2,198
Development of S. H. Ho College BREHER 2 168 2 168
Development of C. W. Chu College BRWER 288 764 288 764
Development of Lee Woo Sing College  SRME S % 10,354 15,306 10,354 15,306
Development of Wu Yee Sun College  BRAEHRSMR 269 10,788 269 10,788
Development of Shenzhen Campus BRI - 40,000 - 40,000
Development of Teaching Hospital BRHPERR 326,709 308,816 326,709 308,816
General Academic Use —MEHER R E 220,393 220,651 207,431 192,849
774,371 740,915 731,379 696,460

(1) Total donations of $192.1 million were received from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust for the

year (2017: $28.7 million).

(2) Total donations of $100 million were received from The D.H. Chen Foundation in support of the development
of the CUHK Medical Centre Limited for the year (2017: $100 million).

(1) AEEREAEREEECAEASRECHRE—RBATIE—1&ER CE—t& ZFNA\BEtTED -
(2) FAFEHRREHEASFRETABIFERPNAZEEPOERABDZHBEL—ET CE—LF —En) -



8.

ANCILLARY SERVICES INCOME

ENREFSI A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUBHETT5IR)

The Group The University
KRS KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
Resident Halls BEEE 156,273 150,566 156,007 150,404
Rental Income A 72,897 68,382 66,630 62,194
Catering and Hospitality Services IERRERERTE 6,467 8,682 6,467 8,682
University Press KE ARt 9,466 8,946 9,466 8,946
Rental Contribution from Staff M EHEEHXR 12,005 11,331 12,005 11,331
Retail Store Sales TEEHIHE 1,707 1,692 1,709 1,692
Others Hith 57,818 51,173 57,818 51,173
316,633 300,772 310,102 294,422
OTHER INCOME  HftIltA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (WUERETFTT517R)

The Group The University
KRS KE

2018 2017 2018 2017
Service Income RRFFUTA 244,184 241,481 244,664 241,213
Contract Research BEH 173,016 106,555 172,430 105,974
Miscellaneous Hith 192,633 201,252 190,285 197,728
609,833 549,288 607,379 544,915
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10. EXPENDITURE 3iH
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUE#FIT5I7R)

The Group
KEARERS

Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2018
and Benefits Expenses Total

B TE
RigH KX e HRE

Learning and Research Biii %

Instruction and Research HERME 4,123,240 1,430,563 213,578 5,767,381
Library EES:H 103,042 146,730 6,080 255,852
Central Computing Facilities AR E AR iR 101,746 37,375 20,104 159,225
Other Academic Services HithZ 2B RT% 134,395 29,615 1,920 165,930

4,462,423 1,644,283 241,682 6,348,388

Institutional Support (Note 10.1) AEFHRNARFE(HIFE10.1)

Management and General BIER—AREIE 285,969 85,417 17,635 389,021

Premises and Related Expenses  #&F KEERx M 195,944 327,271 216,852 740,067

Student and General Education BUER—MHEEHE 217,212 306,609 9,331 533,152
Services

Other Activities Hith=E5% 20,454 9,286 454 30,194

719,579 728,583 244,272 1,692,434

Total Expenditure - 2018 —EB-/\F@%XH 5,182,002 2,372,866 485,954 8,040,822

Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2017

and Benefits Expenses Total
B T#rb
K@ R e R
Learning and Research BiliRfx

Instruction and Research HERARE 4,034,783 1,435506 214,601 5,684,890
Library EES3: 99,344 125,562 6,916 231,822
Central Computing Facilities AR E AR iR 94,895 51,019 18,947 164,861
Other Academic Services HAth# 2R 128,812 47,139 1,894 177,845

4,357,834 1,659,226 242,358 6,259,418

Institutional Support (Note 10.1) AXEFHBNARFS(FHIaE10.1)

Management and General EIER—AYEIE 268,600 126,875 16,839 412,314

Premises and Related Expenses EFREREH 190,551 321,405 232,825 744,781

Student and General Education BYER—WRHEE 210,075 263,155 8,672 481,902
Services

Other Activities HthE% 20,969 13,655 554 35,178

690,195 725,090 258,890 1,674,175

Total Expenditure - 2017 —B-tF@%H 5,048,029 2,384,316 501,248 7,933,593



10.

EXPENDITURE %M (Continued £8)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (WU&#FT5R)

The University
B

Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2018

Student and General Education
Services
Other Activities

Total Expenditure - 2018

and Benefits Expenses Total
BT ErA
K@l TR e HIEE
Learning and Research BiiRHR
Instruction and Research HEBRAE 4,123,199 1,427,653 213,566 5,764,418
Library EES:H 103,042 146,730 6,080 255,852
Central Computing Facilities R ERSEL 101,746 37,371 20,104 159,221
Other Academic Services H 22 hR% 122,711 22,190 1,816 146,717
4,450,698 1,633,944 241,566 6,326,208
Institutional Support (Note 10.1)  KE3EBIARTE (Pi15E10.1)
Management and General BN —MEIE 256,151 85,564 17,458 359,173
Premises and Related Expenses BFRBAZE 195,210 312,619 214,530 722,359

BER—MBEEH 197,448 272,878 9,021 479,347

HithsE7% 20,250 6,654 408 27,312
669,059 677,715 241,417 1,588,191

ZE-N\FA%H 5,119,757 2,311,659 482,983 7,914,399

Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2017

and Benefits Expenses Total
B T E
FeigFl TERR e bk
Learning and Research BiiRE
Instruction and Research HEBERME 4,034,773 1,433,471 214,591 5,682,835
Library EEes 99,344 125562 6,916 231,822
Central Computing Facilities R ERSEL e 94,895 51,019 18,947 164,861
Other Academic Services HhHE2BRS 116,363 30,033 1,767 148,163
4,345,375 1,640,085 242221 6,227,681
Institutional Support (Note 10.1)  XE3EHENERTE(Ki5E10.1)
Management and General EIER—MEIE 245523 125,931 16,651 388,105
Premises and Related Expenses BFREREH 189,823 314,335 230,359 734,517
Student and General Education BAER—MWBEER 193,354 229,975 8,429 431,758
Services
Other Activities HihEM 20,836 7,703 513 29,052
649,536 677,944 255952 1,583,432
Total Expenditure - 2017 —S—tEETH 4,994,911 2,318,029 498,173 7,811,113
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10.1 Analysis of Institutional Support - Operating Expenses XE#iBRISELEMAEZ SR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUE#EFTHI7R)

The Group The University
PN PN
2018 2017 2018 2017
Management and General BN —MEIR
General Insurance — R ERA 6,351 6,742 6,351 6,742
Auditor’'s Remuneration, Legal RIS « EER 2,867 5,242 2,699 4,298
and Other Professional Fees BEXEHER

Other Operating Expenses Hitb#EEm 76,199 114,891 76,514 114,891

85,417 126,875 85,564 125,931

Premises and Related Expenses EBFRERZH

Repair and Maintenance HERFE 147,145 144,685 133,558 138,637

Utilities KERERE 108,781 104,728 108,781 104,728

Government Rent and Rates = R AR 65,187 66,410 64,958 66,156

Security, Environment and Safety BRL RIERLZEET 3,706 3,219 2,990 2,525
Services

Property Insurance MERGER 2,343 2,301 2,332 2,289

Other Operating Expenses HithfSeapasz 109 62 - -

327,271 321,405 312,619 314,335

Student and General Education BER—BEEE
Services
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries 24 - 24 REIEE® 166,631 125,659 143,394 101,955
Resident Halls Expenses BYEERY 62,959 61,300 62,608 60,155
Student Exchange Programme B TIRETE 12,684 11,741 12,653 11,719
Careers, Counseling Services and B - $8REREE 39,553 39,665 40,570 45,000
Student Activities RINEED
Student/Extra-curriculum Activities B4 /iR EED 6,028 5,927 - -
Alumni Affairs KRR ETE 3,907 3,714 3,909 3,714
Sports and Other Facilities BB R EMERE 3,449 1,469 3,430 1,491
Student Financial Aids BB ER 552 649 - -
Student and Staff Health Services B4 K208 B (R AR TS 5,721 5,168 5,714 5,168
Other Operating Expenses Hitb#EEm 5,125 7,863 600 773
306,609 263,155 272,878 229,975
Other Activities HAth=E55
University Press KEH ARt 3,555 5,220 3,557 5,222
Catering Services PERMRTS 2,771 1,801 2,771 1,801
Souvenir Counter [t 128 533 144 552
Miscellaneous Mg H 2,832 6,101 182 128

9,286 13,655 6,654 7,703

728,583 725,090 677,715 677,944

Note: $5,467,630 (2017: $5,490,796) was spent on the . CARE Programme which was included in the Student
and General Education Services.

et AEHEEIEEMANABN+ A "EtT\B=+tn(CE2—t%F : AEN+ABZEEEA+IT)
EEREERLER—MHEEHEAN -



10.2 Remuneration of Senior Staff SR E T ERE

The number of staff members in the University whose remuneration exceeded HK$1,800,000 during the years ended
30 June 2018 and 2017, irrespective of the funding sources and listed by the various bands, are as follows:

FEEREZFEASANAX N ZEFB@EE—a N\ +TETNE TABLSHERIINT ¢

The Group The University
REBERE PN
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ $

1,800,001 - 1,950,000 90 93 90 93
1,950,001 - 2,100,000 92 85 92 85
2,100,001 - 2,250,000 64 61 62 61
2,250,001 - 2,400,000 43 36 43 36
2,400,001 - 2,550,000 32 29 31 29
2,550,001 - 2,700,000 14 16 14 16
2,700,001 - 2,850,000 11 8 11 8
2,850,001 - 3,000,000 11 7 11 7
3,000,001 - 3,150,000 7 12 7 12
3,150,001 - 3,300,000 14 13 13 13
3,300,001 - 3,450,000 3 5 3 5
3,450,001 - 3,600,000 4 1 4 1
3,600,001 - 3,750,000 4 2 4 2
3,750,001 - 3,900,000 5 6 5 6
3,900,001 - 4,050,000 7 6 7 6
4,050,001 - 4,200,000 5 4 5 4
4,200,001 - 4,350,000 - 4 - 4
4,350,001 - 4,500,000 1 1 1 1
4,500,001 - 4,650,000 2 1 2 1
4,650,001 - 4,800,000 9 7 9 7
4,800,001 - 4,950,000 8 8 8 8
4,950,001 - 5,100,000 1 5 1 5
5,100,001 - 5,250,000 3 3 3 3
5,250,001 - 5,400,000 2 2 2 2
5,400,001 - 5,550,000 - - - -
5,550,001 - 5,700,000 2 2 2 2
5,700,001 - 5,850,000 - 1 - 1
5,850,001 - 6,000,000 1 - 1 -
6,000,001 - 6,150,000 - - - -
6,150,001 - 6,300,000 - 1 - 1

(<o}
H
w
-—
i N
N
©

Total B 435 41

No. of clinical staff members
(included in the total figure above)
ERRESEASEE (BFEN LEHF) 111 114 111 114

Remuneration includes salaries, contributions to retirement schemes, housing benefits, education allowances,
contract-end gratuities and other allowances.
FMEEF S  RASE - BEREY - HE 20 - ¥R R E M2k -
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1.

RESTRICTED FUNDS HEHEE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s and the
University’s Restricted Funds are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Statement
of Changes in Funds respectively.

ARBHEBERABNERAEEAZMEME D EN R EEEHFALHER - HREGSESESRRESEEHRPIIR -

11.1 The Group REREC

(i) As at 30 June 2018, the balance of Others includes the Pommerenke Trust Fund of $718 million (2017:
$716 million) and the operating reserves of $3,193 million (2017: $3,529 million) for self-financed activities,
ancillary services and privately funded projects. The Pommerenke Trust Fund originates from a gift of land
donated in 1970 to the Chung Chi College by the Reverend Herbert Henry Pommerenke and Mrs. Jean
Macpherson Pommerenke in commemoration of Doctors Stewart and Julia Kunkle. The land gift was
outside the precincts of the University and, since 1976 and in accordance with The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance, has been vested in the Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College on the same trusts
and subject to the same terms and conditions on which the land gift was then held.

BE—T/\HFAA=1H HttEZEERERESCR—T/\BERX CE2E—t&F:. t—T/- 887 &
KEBEEE  ABEHERFERAABRENEERFE=T LT8R CE—t&F : =+AR=FTIE
B - EEBRESRERERBEREXAR - EEFAicEDoctors StewartJulia KunkleMiBix#a R AL
B9t ih - SHRERREISIRAV LI K ESEE I - B— N EARFLE - RIBEFBPCABEHIMZIBEFE NER
FAZFHE T MATRRERIS LR BRI L E T - RBREERRES -

(i) The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $774 million (2017: $741 million) as disclosed in Note 7.

BFEEEZLIN BIRESZRESHEPEOEMBBEAEHNEZ ERETHEER (CE—t5F: R0
T—EET) ES BB ATEFIIRKEETA -

11.2 The University KE

(i) As at 30 June 2018, the balance of Others includes the operating reserves of $1,362 million (2017: $1,483
million) for self-financed activities and ancillary services.

BE_T—/\FAH=1TH  HttEE T EEEEEADRABHRBELREBL =B \T=8&8T
T—tHF  +URNT=ZEE) °

(i) The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $731 million (2017: $696 million) as disclosed in Note 7.

BFEEESLN BREXSAESNEFHOEMBEAERNEZ CR=T 88T CE2—tF : ~EL
TREET) FESE - BB ATEFIINKEETA -



NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED FUNDS
Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
non-deferred funds.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received by
the University, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent
balance of funds donated for the development of new
colleges. In addition, the Funds also comprise the
unspent balance of sponsorship grants and service
income.

Building Funds

Building Funds comprise the privately-funded capital
projects funded by external private organisations.

Research Projects Funds

Research Projects Funds represent the unspent
balance of projects with designated purpose in
carrying out research activities, including those
funded by the Government, related organisations
and external private organisations.

Others

Others comprise reserves generated from self-
financed programmes, ancillary services, scholarships
and bursaries and miscellaneous activities.

Investment Revaluation Reserve

Investment Revaluation Reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in fair value of available-for-
sale equity securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealth with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2.7(v).

SREEMNMELARE
BEER®

BEEASERFREENESBENEEEZNREF
B~

BrEE

BAEEEABWIRRIEIUR - BEREEEREEL
TERETE  BFFesEiEcPERFEEERE -

HithnSHEE

Hitt SRR S BEREAFRRENSRAVBIERIE - It
Hh - BENE S BBBIRAVEREE R RIS -

BREEESE
BEIEAELUERLAMBENEZTRE -

MREEEE

MREEESERGBAERESEESNES - EF
NEBMEREFBBIITHRES « HEAHKE RFLA
g -

Hth

HittSRELEERKBEELERE BRI - B2
T BB RRIRIBNRIERE -

BEE R

WA B AR RS A O A T SR A RS
MR AR EEFES - AR 7B
SRR -
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12. UGC FUNDS HEZEE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s and the
University’s UGC Funds are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Statement of
Changes in Funds respectively.

RBEBRABNHE SRS AZAMBAI I RPBRBEROHER - M ERSESEHREESEHRPIIR -

(1) The General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”) represents the unspent funds carried over from
one funding period (usually a triennium) to the next to facilitate the University’s longer-term planning and
new developmental needs. The balance of the GDRF at the end of a funding period should not exceed 20%
of the University’s approved Recurrent Grants other than the Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes for
that funding period, and any excess amount is refundable to UGC.

—fix R BRERESENBENBRER A=) RDAMAIEES —BNPREARRENERERNES - —
xR B RARE SR ZHEEFUABEZREZIEEMHE (R AARZIEEMMERINVNBE D ZZ+AR - T
HBHREENBOTREABHEENEEE

(2) $419 million of the UGC Matching Grants has been set aside as long-term endowment capital, to support
strategic initiatives such as endowed professorships, endowed scholarships and other indicated activities
in perpetuity.

HESRHHHETNVNE—TNLEERCEBEEAEENELS @ LFERMUMNRRIER - BEERIEIH
i « EBpIRB 2 R HMITEEED -



13.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES REIBAERIRE

E din th ds of Hong Kong doll LI TLIITR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUA¥FIToI7R) The University

*

2018 2017

Unlisted Shares, at cost FEEBRD » ¥RRA 610,257 610,257

As explained in Note 1, except for CUHK Health Limited, CUHK Medical Centre Limited, CUHK Medical Clinic
Limited and CUHK Medical Centre Charitable Foundation Limited which have been consolidated into the Group’s
financial statements, the results of all other subsidiaries have not been consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements:-

ANRIEE FRREL - BR T BEPNKBEBREGRAR - HEPNXKBEEROERAR @ FEPXAKBEZHOBRA
FAREEPNABERZSESEERARMGEDKBEBZIFRR I KBERZHMERIRILIBHRELUT
BB B A R BIBAFEAR -

Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activities

incorporation FraAtEstL S
and operation

Stz by the University by a subsidiary

NS FEEE L EEpNE SR E] HBAREE ITEEH
The Chinese University of  Hong Kong Note To sponsor, develop, promote and
Hong Kong Foundation &5& FEE encourage public participation in
Limited public services
BEPXARBEEE &Bh -« BRE - (BERSBBITEAR
BIRAF] BENHLE
Information Networking Hong Kong 100% To provide technology transfer
Laboratories Limited * &5& and investment holding
REMHEM R BIRAR * RIS RN E RS
PA Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services which are
EEERAR & charitable and educational in
nature

REEERHEHLENRS

HKIX Hong Kong Limited * British Virgin 100% Investment holding
Islands WREER
RERLES
The Hong Kong Internet Hong Kong 100% To provide internet services
eXchange Limited ik 1R BRI TS
& BRIFR A BT A
BIRAF]
CUCAMed Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To promote Chinese medicine in
AR EERHRAR G Hong Kong
EEBHEPLE
The Hong Kong Institute of Hong Kong Note To develop an internationally
Biotechnology Limited & FizE recognised biotechnology
EELMRRMER industry in Hong Kong
BRAR EEEEEBREEATNENRIR
IT%
IBSOmed Bioscience Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services and
ERBIEBRAR HE manufacture products related to

biotechnology
RHERE M AERRRIRE R E

O &U4E
an =
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Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activities

incorporation RGeS E
and operation

XMk by the University by a subsidiary

AR LR B, EEpNE R S) HEAREE ITEEH
ERAMERGEINERAR * The People’s 100% To carry out research, technology
Republic transfer and related technical
of China services on advanced technology,
REAR provide consulting service
HANE on international technology

development, and manage
owned properties

ST RIAT S © B L RARRRR
BR#5 - BARRFIE S50 - BEY

FgReEE
Asia Diabetes Foundation Hong Kong Note To organise activities and
Limited * && FtEE research regarding diabetes on

a non-profit making basis
DR IR CHE AR RA i HE PR AYIE

BRI
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Note To sponsor, develop, promote and
Hong Kong (Shenzhen) & FEE encourage public participation in
Foundation Limited public services
FEAPXKRBORNEEE &HBh -~ BE - BERSREITEAR
BIRAT SHNHERE
CUHK Health Limited Hong Kong 100% To develop and manage medical
FEARAPXABEEBRAR &iE centres to provide high-quality

healthcare services and support
for teaching, research, and
clinical activities undertaken by
the Faculty of Medicine of CUHK
in furtherance of the educational
objective and aspiration of CUHK
BREEROLURMEEERR
% E—SHESEERCKE
BERNHZ - MR REMmER
EE)  LEBREEPNXKBEH

K FRER
CUHK Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide high quality private
FH R ABEEEM £ healthcare services to support
HRRAF sustainable development of

medical and health services
in Hong Kong, to strengthen
the training of healthcare
professionals and facilitate
application of research results
and clinical service innovations
through the operation of a private
teaching hospital
LEFEBEPNKRBEGLEES
BEERTIN AT RHERE - 155
B A BRI EIAVERIK
RETE



Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activities
incorporation FraMfE st S
and operation
Mz Rk by the University by a subsidiary
NE)EE B HAZBEE HINBARE IEEHE
CUHK Medical Clinic Hong Kong 100% To provide medical clinic services
Limited * &5 to facilitate the operations of
i AL the CUHK Medical Centre, to
HIRAT) * facilitate application of research
results and training of healthcare
professionals, and to deliver high
quality ambulatory healthcare
services to the community at
transparent and affordable prices
RIEBEMPIZEERT - LEEAE
AR AKBEZEE - (EERM
R REIERIKFER - 153l S REEEA
8 RUSERELEERNESE
T ARSENERRE
CUHK Medical Centre Hong Kong Note To provide financial assistance
Charitable Foundation &E& Fif5E to needy patients for receiving
Limited adequate medical treatment
EARYABEEEERSE offered by the CUHK’s group of
HRAT] private hospital and/or clinic, to

*  Companies not audited by KPMG.

* EEARMRE B LIFHE BHEMEBAAE -
Note: These companies are limited by guarantee without share capital.
i ELAREREAGRAR - WREZMEL -

organise activities of a charitable
nature for public benefit that
promotes health and offers
learning opportunity for the
purpose of advancing education,
innovation and treatment in the
medical field
B EEEHRR AR MEBER
F BRATEEEBPXARBETH
FAZREERT AN/ EL B FS R/ LIS EIELIRY
BRiRTS - WEMSAREEEH
EfEEREHBENEEE - 12
BREEHNHE © BT RAE
LIfF & ARFES
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s and the University’s investment
properties were originated from building gifts and
stated at zero cost in the Group’s and the University’s
Statements of Financial Position respectively. For
disclosure purpose, the Group’s and the University’s
investment properties were revalued as at 30 June
2018 by independent firms of surveyors, Cushman
& Wakefield Limited for Hong Kong commercial
investment properties and CBRE Limited for Hong
Kong residential investment properties, both have
appropriate qualifications and experience in the
valuation of properties.

Pursuant to the surveyors’ valuations, the
Group’s and the University’s recurring fair value
measurements categorised into Level 3 for the
Hong Kong commercial investment properties at
the end of the reporting period were approximately
$29.0 million (2017: $24.5 million). The Group’s and
the University’s recurring fair value measurements
categorised into Level 3 for Hong Kong residential
investment properties at the end of the reporting
period were approximately $221.2 million and
nil respectively (2017: $175.3 million and nil
respectively).

Such fair value measurement of the Group’s and the
University’s investment properties fall under Level
3 of the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement, as it uses
significant unobservable inputs. The valuation meth-
odology for 2018 remains the same as prior year.

14. {EWFR

ABEBEAXRBHREMERBMERLE - WL
TRADHERAGRE RABHHARRR o Bt
BRR KRBEBRABHUREVENR-ZT—
NEARB=Z+HARBEBIRAERRAEEA
AERRIRAUNRETENBEREYEMCBRE
Limited BN EENEEREDEMFHMAEE -

RIBAFTENRME{E - IRARBEEDEE=ZFHR
RRBEERABNUNEENEEREYENR
BASBE BRI FEEFERFITNAZT
BEX CE—CtHF ZTUEATET) °» RAR
BETB MR -SRI KEEBERAENUNEE
HEERENENFFELRBENERFTHNEE
AR AR T B TERERT (&F
—tF A —RETAE=TERAAET)

BIEEBMBEREE13ME " AREBEE, T
REN=FELARBESH EXRAEXFEITHE
g RBEBRAZHNREVERE=FHML
B ZE-N\FEMNGEHFRALFEMAR -



15. FIXED ASSETS [EE&E
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUEBETFTHIR)

The Group
KEARERE
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art
(Note Ffz¥) in and Fittings Collection
Land  Buildings Progress %f#- 8 il Total
+ith BE fEEIR &3 LT B
Cost %3
At 1 July 2017 —E—+F 336,848 7,407,983 442,798 3,692,200 23,827 11,903,656
tHA—B#EER
Additions 1M 115,161 42,811 1,009,150 264,750 254 1,432,126
Disposals HE - - - (86,326) (20)  (86,346)
At 30 June 2018 —2N\%

NRA=1H#ER 452,009 7,450,794 1,451,948 3,870,624 24,061 13,249,436

Accumulated Depreciation RHETE

At 1 July 2017 2t 104,891 2,570,164 - 3,043,551 - 5,718,606
tHA—HitER
Charge for the Year TR 9,684 184,175 - 292,095 - 485,954
Written Back on Disposal ~ HHE#&[EIE# - - - (85,740) - (85,740)
At 30 June 2018 — A
ANE=1H#E 114575 2,754,339 - 3,249,906 - 6,118,820
Net Book Value at =B-\FRA=1H
30 June 2018 IREEE 337,434 4,696,455 1,451,948 620,718 24,061 7,130,616
Cost 5%
At 1 July 2016 B AE 336,848 7,385,888 21,627 3,554,960 22,145 11,321,468
t A —HitEs
Additions 1 - 24688 421171 244,017 1,682 691,558
Disposals HEE - (259) - _(106,777) - (109,370)
At 30 June 2017 ——tF

NA=1+H#te; 336,848 7,407,983 442,798 3,692,200 23,827 11,903,656

Accumulated Depreciation BEifEE

At 1 July 2016 ol MY 97,160 2,389,357 - 2,839,610 - 5,326,127
+tHA—B#Eek
Charge for the Year rE%E 7,731 183,216 - 310,301 - 501,248
Written Back on Disposal ~ HE#E1# - (2409) - (106,360) - (108,769)
At 30 June 2017 —E—tF
AB=+Efes 104,801 2,570,164 - 3,043,551 - 5718,606
Net Book Value at —B—-tFSA=1H
30 June 2017 EEEE 231,957 4,837,819 442798 648,649 23,827 6,185,050
Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.

The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by
the Government for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.

BiisE: - tiHEIREERERTHER LM -
FrAEXEEINREESEEE - ABFLEEREXNRHFABUNDAREREZ B Lt BHEAEE - 1
DZR AT -
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15. FIXED ASSETS EE&E (Continued #&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU IT5I7R)

The University

P
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art
(Note [ffz¥) in and Fittings Collection
Land Buildings Progress %5 82  £iff Total
Tt BE TEIRE  REM ST k]
Cost 2%
At 1 July 2017 —E—tF 336,848 7,329,704 111,088 3,679,765 20,302 11,477,707
tH—B#Es
Additions 170 115,161 42,811 383,772 264,159 254 806,157
Disposals HE - - - (85,915) (20)  (85,935)
At 30 June 2018 —E-N\F
ANAZ=1B#E8% 452,009 7,372,515 494,860 3,858,009 20,536 12,197,929
Accumulated Depreciation RTEHTEE
At 1 July 2017 —2—tF 104,891 2,559,274 - 3,033,224 - 5,697,389
tH—B#EER
Charge for the Year &R 9,684 182,193 - 291,106 - 482,983
Written Back on Disposal &R B - - - (85,329) - (85,329)
At 30 June 2018 2N\
ANB=+B#E: 114,575 2,741,467 - 3,239,001 - 6,095,043
Net Book Value at —E-N\EFExA=1+H
30 June 2018 IREFE 337,434 4,631,048 494,860 619,008 20,536 6,102,886
Cost (273
At 1 July 2016 —E-REF 336,848 7,307,609 21,627 3,543,568 19,970 11,229,622
+tA—H#EeR
Additions A - 24,688 89,461 242,960 332 357,441
Disposals HE - (2,593) - (106,763) - (109,356)
At 30 June 2017 —E—tF
NA=+B#8 336,848 7,329,704 111,088 3,679,765 20,302 11,477,707
Accumulated Depreciation RiEHTEE
At 1 July 2016 —E-REF 97,160 2,380,449 - 2,830,362 - 5,307,971
tHA—H#&E
Charge for the Year &R 7,731 181,234 - 309,208 - 498173
Written Back on Disposal ~ HIEE1& A1 - (2,409) - (106,346) - (108,755)
At 30 June 2017 —2—tF
ANBZ=1B#8% 104,891 2,559,274 - 3,033,224 - 5,697,389
Net Book Value at —E—-tFXA=1+H
30 June 2017 IREFE 231,957 4,770,430 111,088 646,541 20,302 5,780,318
Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.
- The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by
the Govemment for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.
MiEE: - TiEieEEHE# TRERA LM -

- FREXSELIMREENEEE - HEFLUHEERNREFTARUN D HRFREZ BRI Lt BrREAZZE - I

D2 AR o



16.

INVESTMENTS uE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUE#EFTHIR)
16.1 Non-Current Investments JEiRENIRE

The Group The University
KERERS KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, HEEEIEREEES
at Amortised Cost TRI#EER A
Unlisted JELEM 1,206,586 1,084,977 1,205,582 1,083,972
Listed £
Hong Kong && 1,092,194 894,633 940,172 768,459
Overseas B 643,246 913,880 643,246 913,880
2,942,026 2,893,490 2,789,000 2,766,311
Available-for-sale Securities AEHEES
Unlisted Equity Securities, IEETHBEAEES -
at Cost RAA 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
Less: Provision for Impairment R A 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
1 1 1 1
Equity Securities Listed in Hong Kong, EE LR AGES
at Fair Value BAREE 258,620 258,673 - -
Unit Trusts Listed in Hong Kong, & LHEAMMEEE
at Fair Value A& BRAREE 5,395 4,099 - -
264,016 262,773 1 1
Limited Partnership Investments, [REAEIRE -
at Fair Value (Note 1) BAREE (fEE1) 1,917,891 1,655,320 1,917,891 1,655,320
Alternative Investments, BIERE
at Fair Value (Note 2) WAREE (PH5E2) 461,035 409,522 461,035 409,522
Investments in Unconsolidated FEREEAT
Subsidiaries, at Cost RIS E - REA 110,257 110,257 - -
Non-Current Investments

IERENRE 5,695,225 5,331,362

5,167,927

4,831,154
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Note:(1) These investments represent the University’s equity interest as a limited partner in three limited partnerships
and are stated at fair value. The University intends to hold these investments for long-term purposes. The
main limited partnership, which started in July 2006, targets to maximise long-term risk-adjusted returns by
investing in proprietary funds, discretionary accounts and partnerships across a broad range of marketable
and alternative asset classes, including both publicly traded and privately held securities. All applicable
lock-up periods of the main limited partnership ended on or before 31 December 2011. The University
may withdraw all or any part of its Capital Account by giving the General Partner of the partnership written
advance notice of not less than one year prior to withdrawal.

In July 2009 and February 2010, the University joined as limited partners of two limited partnerships. These
limited partnerships were set up to invest in highly selective investment opportunities formerly held by limited
partners of other limited partnerships who have been forced to sell in the market at substantial discounts their
high-quality limited partnership interests in private equity, distressed credit, real estate, natural resources,
etc. The capital commitments will be drawn upon request from the General Partner. The University’s original
commitments of these two limited partnerships were approximately US$14.9 million and US$2.25 million
respectively. As at 30 June 2018, the University has paid US$11.8 million and US$2.0 million respectively
to these two limited partnerships (2017: US$11.8 million and US$2.0 million).

In July 2017 and January 2018, the University joined as limited partners of six new limited partnerships.
These limited partnerships were set up to invest in four different classes of private asset funds. The capital
commitments will be drawn upon request from the General Partner. The University’s total commitments
were approximately US$30 million. As at 30 June 2018, the University has paid US$12.2 million to these
six limited partnerships.

(2) The alternative investments represent the University’s investments arranged and managed by an investment
consultant in the United States. These alternative investments include hedge funds, private equity funds
and limited partnership. The University intends to hold these alternative investments for long-term purposes.

BizE: (1) REBIRREBSBABSDHRAIRENRZERESHEE ZHUAREETIE - KB ERPBHBLFIRERE -
REZAREABHREN_STAF LA - BEENENEGRERBAEARSHOEER - bm&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ
FEHERES  EHEERFREBEUZEHBNEBRERSEEES AP TEELAREBERILAFEMNES
FrAREGBEREENREEEPEN =2—F+ZA=+—HER - KBUUFRELE—FUTEBME ?AEW
BRRFHERD N EIAIBER -

AENRAR _EZNFELARE-ZEF_ARENMERSEHIEE - EMERESBEEFERENRES
BReREEENEMREESHIEE - BURESHBIEEEHRENRESHALIE KA SEEEBREGL LIZE
FRESHIEE - SERESHEEREQEILERE « (REEEEE  BitE - RAFERE - RETBEELNE
REBAERFZN - AERYIFAENREERM I A—THUEATEEAR_BE_+HEETL #E_ZT—
NERA=+H " RBAIRET—F—B/N\+tEEAR-BEETREMRERSGHIER (CE—tF: —F
—BN\tTEEIRZHEETD °

ARERIR_E—EFEARE-N\F—ARENAERESHIEE - ENERESHIEETERENNIET
FANALEEE - AEBBEAANEGBABKREZY - AERMABNZBBEFAA=TEZT B8E"F—/\
FARB=1H ABRET-—T-BTEERRNENERSSGHIER -

(2) BB ER—BEENREEHARNRREE  GFHHES  BREREESRRESBRES - KB
BRIARERERE -



16.

INVESTMENTS 3888  (Continued £§)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUE#ETFTHIR)

16.2 Current Investments REEE

The Group The University
KEBEEE KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, BHERZIHRESES
at Amortised Cost YREEHR A
Amount Matured Within One Year —FREIER
Unlisted JELET 237,084 || 563,060 237,084 || 563,060
Listed iyl
Hong Kong &8 33,446 60,008 - 42,810
Overseas Bk 374,419 -| | 374,419 -
644,949 623,068 611,503 605,870
Trading Securities, at Fair Value AEEES  RAREE
Debt Securities 1E5ES
Unlisted (Note 3) JE b (I5E3) 272,726 187,016 272,726 187,016
Equity Securities BEAFE S
Listed Em
Hong Kong & 321,395 || 279,399 88,089 83,897
Overseas BN 1,138,741 |11,017,829| 1,103,086 |[1,017,829
1,460,136 1,297,228 1,191,175 1,101,726
Unit Trusts BAEFEES
Unlisted JEET 790,220 | 649,421 787,709 || 649,421
Listed E
Hong Kong HE 591,200 || 464,144 522,403 || 403,650
Overseas B 142,673 || 223,045| | 137,092|| 217,034
1,524,093 1,336,610 1,447,204 1,270,105
3,256,955 2,820,854 2,911,105 2,558,847
Current Investments TMENIRE 3,901,904 3,443,922 3,522,608 3,164,717

Total Held-to-maturity Debt Securities (Including Non-Current and Current Investments) :

FHEZHAEHESRREFEERES RREIRE)

The Group The University
REBEEE PN -
2018 2017 2018 2017
At amortised cost RESER A 3,586,975 3,516,558 3,400,503 3,372,181
At fair value BAREE 3,532,784 3,530,716 3,346,312 3,387,301

Note:(3) Cash balance held by the external investment managers of $143 million (2017: $107 million) for investment

purpose was included in the Group’s and the University’s Debt Securities.

BiizE: (3) IMBREFIEFEN—RUT=ZE8R (Z2—tF ' —RECLEER) ANKEENZREFAESTEARE

BRABIEBESS -
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17. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSETS EERAGENEE
17.1 Defined Benefit Scheme and Employee Retirement Benefit Assets REFMIIIEIRESRAEBINEE

The University operates a defined benefit scheme for staff under Terms of Service (C), The Chinese University
of Hong Kong Terms of Service (C) Staff Terminal Gratuity Scheme (“the TGS Scheme”). The TGS Scheme
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSQO”) and a MPF-exempted ORSO
scheme that is subject to Hong Kong ORSO and MPF (Exemption) regulations. Since the establishment of
a MPF Scheme on 1 December 2000, the TGS Scheme has been closed to new members. An actuarial
valuation of the Scheme is conducted every 3 years by Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, the appointed actuary
to the Scheme. This defined benefit scheme exposes the University to actuarial risks such as interest rate
risk, salary risk and investment risk. The information about the TGS Scheme is summarised as below:

REEELR)ERBEGRERE—ERENRETE - B " FBHXABR) AR EAGIRESALHIERI NN 518 L
o SEETEIRRBH R RAGTEIRGIEEM - BRI AR BIERRIMAGIT - ERRE R R ERAGE - B
WRBRRAEGN—ETTF+TA—BAMIIE  ERENRESTBEZHNE - EREN R ENBEERE
EEBZ=FHEHEB)BRARET - BEEFTE - APEIHEEER - FI0F=R « FEEMAMRERE - EFRE
FESFT BB RN T ¢

The amount of net assets recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as follows:
BTSRRI 2 BERAN T ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUB#TTTFI7R)
The Group and the University

KERFET K
2018 2017
Present Value of Funded Obligations AEERZRE (46,647) (54,129)
Fair Value of Scheme Assets SrEIEEZAREE 56,166 61,541
Net Assets FEE 9,519 7,412

A portion of the above assets is expected to be recovered in the next twelve months. However, it is not
practicable to segregate this amount from the amount recoverable after more than one year, as future
reductions in contributions will also relate to future services rendered, future changes in actuarial assumptions
and market conditions. The University is expected to pay $127,000 contribution to the Scheme for the
financial year 2018/19.

£h19 DA R -+ EA AU - BRR AP ERE REOSETEN - AARRERR
HEOBRYS W E MR RSB - R L TAGEE— A MINEEEARIIE - KSR -2
NEZB-ARBEES  BRAHELEH BT TR -



(i

(iii)

(iv)

Scheme assets allocation:
EHEIEEN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LU&#FT5I7R)
The Group and the University
KERRERKE
2018 2017
Amount % Amount %

=8 Btk &% Btk
Bonds &% 30,473 54 28,726 47
Cash and Bank Deposits HERIRITIER 25,693 46 32,815 53
56,166 100 100

61,541

All bonds held under the TGS Scheme have credit ratings of Baa2 or higher.
FrBEERE MRS T 2B 25195 15Baa2fk i Ll ERVEFETRR -

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations (‘DBO”):

REFFEERENES)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUE#T7T5I7R)
The Group and the University
KREBRERAE

2018 2017
Balance - Beginning of Year FAAEER 54,129 62,423
Benefits paid by the Scheme STEIEAFIE (7,116) (8,242)
Current Service Cost WRAEMRIERA 448 597
Interest Cost FBRA 522 388
Remeasurements recognised BT R (1,336) (1,037

(366) (52)
Balance - End of Year FHEAEER 46,647 54,129
Changes in fair value of scheme assets:
STEIRNEEZ ATFEREE) -
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUA#T7T5I7R)

The Group and the University
AERRERKE

2018 2017
Balance - Beginning of Year FAEER 61,541 68,604
Contributions paid to the Scheme METEE L Z R 425 524
Benefits paid by the Scheme BE=INElE (7,116) (8,242)
Return on Scheme Assets (excluding interest StEIEEZ [ERF A 710 221

income) F&IM)

Interest Income FEUA 606 434
Balance - End of Year TFHEAEER 56,166 61,541




(v) (Income)/Expenses recognised in Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure,
and Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure are as follows:
A ETENZREEEWZRAHEE 2 EERMNT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUE#T T3IR)
The Group and the University

PN-EE L IS
2018 2017

Current service cost IRERIFREA 448 597
Interest cost on DBO REFRETEIZFIBREA 522 388
Interest Income on Scheme Assets STEIEEZFIBUIA (606) (434
Net Expenses recognised in the Statements of HEEWNZFREDZFTH 364 551

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions  BREIA OERELEEN 2 50 E 21 -
Effect of changes in financial assumptions BHRIBI TS By E T & (1,695) (961
Effect of experience adjustments BRICER AR v 2 338 (76
Return on Scheme Assets (excluding interest =t & 2 SRR SULA (710) (221

income) (5399
Total remeasurements recognised in REMEEETESEZ (2,046) (1,258)

Other Comprehensive Income MEWEE
Total defined benefit cost recognised 18 R o R 2 B AFEER (1,682) (707)

(vi) Changes in net assets recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as follows:
TEEAFARRRATERS P E = ENE(E -
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) — (LUE#FT317R)
The Group and the University

PN SN
2018 2017

Balance - Beginning of Year FAAEER 7,412 6,181
Contributions paid to the Scheme RIS HERR 425 524
Net expenses on Scheme benefit recognised  MREMEUEZ REEZ REF & (364) (551)

in the Statements of Comprehensive Income FH

and Expenditure
Total remeasurements recognised in HRE R EUL SRR 2,046 1,258

Other Comprehensive Income REEtE
Balance - End of Year TFHEHEER 9,519 7.412

The net expense/income was recognised in the line item of staff cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statements of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
FH/MARERRSZRPNEER—KEIBAR B THN ISR i o



(vii)  Significant actuarial assumptions:

TEREERE
2018 2017
% p.a. % p.a.
Weighted-average assumptions to determine BLETENESF T2 I#EE (% pa.) (% p-a)
benefit obligations 191REs
Discount rate AEIRR 2.10 1.10
Rate of salary increase HEZHERER 4.00 3.50
Weighted-average assumptions to determine UGt EREFEAAZN
defined benefit cost TR
Discount rate BEIER 1.10 0.70
Rate of salary increase HeEZBRER 3.50 3.50
(viii) Sensitivity analysis on DBO:
AEFRETZBUREMT :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUE#F5T517R)
At 30 June 2018

DBO will become Increase/(Decrease) by

RI2—N\FXA=+H 1/ G
AEFRETHEE
Discount rate BRIRR
- 50 basis points RWAB0EEF 47,576 929 1.99%
+ 50 basis points EAN50E8F 45,766 (881) (1.89%)
Salary increase rate FEZIERE
- 50 basis points HAB0BF 46,454 (193)  (0.41%)
+ 50 basis points HEHN50E5F 46,850 203 0.44%
At 30 June 2017
DBO will become Increase/(Decrease) by
R_E—CtFXA=+H 10 / G
REFMSETEER
Discount rate LIRS
- 50 basis points RAB0EEF 55,338 1,209 2.23%
+ 50 basis points EINS0%5F 52,987 (1,142)  (2.11%)
Salary increase rate FEZERE
- 50 basis points HA 50T 53,894 (235)  (0.43%)
+ 50 basis points NS08 F 54,377 248  0.46%
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(ix) Description of funding arrangements and funding policy that affect future contributions:

FERRHANEELHNE SEERFA

The Scheme follows a tri-annual funding valuation schedule. At each funding valuation, the contribution rate
for the following three years is set. The last funding valuation was of 30 June 2017 and it was assessed at
that valuation that the University would contribute 10% of active members’ salary for the period from 1 July
2017 to 30 June 2020.

BB RE=FEMAE  RR=ZFNHHRREBXESMERSE - RENESMERA-Z—tFA=1+H"
NHEZGEEPREARBR _E—tCtF A —HEZE_EFA=+H#FEERENF LB Z TAVHERR -

(X) Maturity profile of DBO:
REFMREEZEEIH M :

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2018 is 4 years (2017: 4.4 years).
REB—NFAR=THRENREEZMETIFRRIF CE—EF 44 5)-

Projected benefit payments (undiscounted) taking into account estimated future employee service and salary growth
based on Actuary’s aforementioned assumptions are:

1R1E B B RES 2 KRR A (BRI B TARRARFEEAFF 1L R) M T -
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTII7R)

Beyond 5 years but
Within 5 years within 10 years Beyond 10 years
5 &R 5 F141E10 X #B@10 &

Expected benefit payments FEERFIZS (TR

At 30 June 2018 R=—ZF—/\FAA=+H 35,255 6,873 11,193
At 30 June 2017 H-E—tHF-HA=+H 36,120 11,956 11,479

17.2 Defined Contribution Scheme FEMFRETE!

In addition to the defined benefit scheme disclosed in Note 17.1, the Group operates two defined contribution
schemes, i.e. The Chinese University of Hong Kong Staff Superannuation Scheme (1995) (“the 1995 Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The 1995 Scheme is a MPF-exempted ORSO-
registered scheme. Employer contributions to these defined contribution schemes are as follows:

BREEE 171 TR RV EFRETE] - KERETARMESREM T METENREHEE - IEEIKERHE
NIEREE (—ANFA) ("T—ANAEE ) )REFIMEATERETE ( TERSETE L ) - — WA AT BB ERAETE
&G TF 32 - LU ZRMmE R E et SIFTE A B E MR |

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTHIR)
The Group The University
KEARERE KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
The 1995 Scheme — RN AEEl 152,093 155,114 151,300 154,182
The MPF Scheme BiERETE 156,213 143,732 154,088 142,187

Total Contributions HAHFR 308,306 298,846 305,388 296,369



18.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEUWARTR ~ FR{IFRIA S EL th B Y TR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUEBETFTHIR)

The Group The University
REBRERE KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
Loan to Subsidiary B THEAT 53,490 53,490 53,490 53,490
Other Loan Receivable EfhEE 90 180 - -
Accounts Receivable FEUTBRER 775,661 525161 766,102 517,058

Sundry Deposits, Prepayments and HIGESE ~ FANRIER 148,729 103,046 66,412 63,061
Other Receivables HthrEU R

Student Loans BEEm 2,753 3,236 1,591 1,601
Current Accounts with Colleges EREDE N - - 5,544 -
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries BB R TEARERFR 10,153 6,499 24,711 20,682
Amount due from UGC HESFRIRFR 32,912 17,075 32,912 17,075

1,023,788 708,687 950,762 672,967
Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts & * FEURERFR « FaAFTFR
Receivable, Prepayments and IaREH tREWER
Other Receivables IERENER D 130,807 90,111 53,490 53,490
Current portion of Accounts Receivable, FEURERFR - TAFTFIER
Prepayments and Other Receivables — EfthEUgFURENIERD 892,981 618,576 897,272 619,477

At 30 June 2018, Non-Current Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other Receivables included an unsecured
and interest-free loan of $53.49 million (2017: $53.49 million) to a subsidiary repayable in January 2021 and
prepayment for fixed assets and interest receivable from a government loan of $77.27 million (2017: $36.56
million) .

RZB—N\FAA=THIFERBEKRR - BIHEREMENREE—2AT=0+LE8T CE—tF ' AT
—HA+ABDEIEFRASHNERTHEBAR  FEMER T _—F—AEE ' REETEENRTRRENE
HHERFECTFEtEZttET CE—tF : =FRBATRED) °

Student loans are granted to local undergraduate and postgraduate students of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. The amount of the loan depends on the student’s financial hardship and/or the loan received from the
“Tertiary Students Finance Scheme-Publicly-Funded Programmes” or the terms of the respective loan schemes.
All student loans are interest-free and repayable by instalments within a stipulated period or upon graduation.
If the borrower ceased to be a student of the University, all loans would then be repayable immediately.

BESHNEERTEENXABNARRAERZ AHNAEE - BESHERFEENUBTER/EHZBER
"EENE LIRREBREEREE, PATESHENEE - MENBEEMYIAREEN  FEEXRETENEA D HAE
B o MEEMER TRIEBENSG - FEERELAEE -

The current accounts with Colleges and Subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and without fixed terms of
repayment. Other than part of Student Loans, all of the other accounts receivable and prepayments are expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

EREREMRMBAREREMAERER  RERESEEEHIR - BREMBLEETI - AtERERATEEIEE—
Fz MEREIEFERR RS
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19.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AGEING ANALYSIS RYBRFRARER 23 1R

The balance of accounts receivable mainly comprises bills receivable and interest receivable, with the following
ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting period:

FEMEBRFRAVERSE T ERIEEUBRE I REWH S - EHEE BRVRE TN T ¢
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUB#ETFT5IR)

The Group The University
KEERE KE

2018 2017 2018 2017
Current ZIHA 751,103 465,245 741,544 457,142
Less than 1 month past due P —{EH 11,514 25,404 11,514 25,404
1 to 3 months past due —ERZE=EA 9,831 13,432 9,831 13,432
More than 3 months but within 12 =EAZE+_fEA 2,344 19,766 2,344 19,766

months past due

More than 12 months past due +-ERLE 869 1,314 869 1,314
Amount past due EZIHA 24,558 59,916 24,558 59,916
Total FEUBR FRHEER 775,661 525,161 766,102 517,058

The Group and the University are satisfied that the past due amounts are likely to be recoverable. No impairment
loss is provided for the year (2017: Nil).
KRB R AT ACFHNSRIMEE TRENE - At - TERAFERTEREESRKE CE—CF: Zn) -

CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS WITH BANKS RERIRITREER

Cash and short-term deposits with banks comprise:
e RIITREFREE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUA#FIT3I7R)

The Group The University
REBEEE PN -
2018 2017 2018 2017
Cash in Hand and with Banks and W - RITREAM 86,149 99,395 80,645 94,467
Other Financial Institutions BATEHERE1Z 2N
Time Deposits THATFER 14,202,504 12,034,561 9,829,960 9,323,202

Cash and Short-term Deposits in the  BAFEANRZRARIIR S &K 14,288,653 12,133,956 9,910,605 9,417,669
Statements of Financial Position SRITRSHATE =N

Less: Time Deposits with Original B FEBERE=EA
Maturity over Three Months BYEHBTEER 13,948,703 11,184,696 9,639,208 8,832,452
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the HErhERANIRE
Cash Flow Statements RIRESEEY 339,950 949,260 271,397 585,217

Note: Time Deposits of $20 million (2017: $26 million) were pledged to secure two loans from the Government
(Note 22(b)).

MiEE: —FEx (CE2—E5F ' ZFRNERNZEHFRCIERFEFEAERZER (iE220))



Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks included the following amounts denominated in foreign currencies:

RERFITRBEFRNRESE - GE TIMESE:

(Expressed in thousands)  (LIFHI3l7R)
The Group The University
REEEE PN

2018 2017 2018 2017
Australian Dollars AUD JBTT 2,426 1,938 2,426 1,938
Euro EUR BRIt 9 71 9 9
Pounds Sterling GBP S 2,438 2,463 1,638 1,683
Renminbi RMB AR 880,364 763,329 863,851 756,932
Singapore Dollars SGD N T 69 68 - -
United States Dollars usD =TT 374,321 757,135 163,564 467,245
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(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

MEABELRIBERE

The tables below detail changes in the Group’s and the University’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the cash flow statements as cash flows from financing
activities.

TREFMABEBRABREMEETHNREES  QFERERFRSEH - MEFBELNSRRNBESRERS
BERSMERPHMHIAMETBELTMNRESR -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BUE#TJTI/R)

The Group
KEEEEEE
Deferred Bank Loans Secured Total
Capital for Loans
Funds ©On-Lending (Note 22)
(Note 24) to Staff
(Note 22)

ELEE  EET R
-5 HHEZ £

(fzroa) SRATEE (HEE22) =
(FIEE22) 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year FAAEER 3,418,981 69,000 1,433,648 4,921,629
Changes from Financing Cash Flows: Ri&IR& G EEE)
Increase in Deferred Capital Funds SEIEEEE S Z &0 188,612 - - 188,612
Proceeds from Loans and BRFE RTS8 - - 2,218,000 2,218,000
Borrowings
Bank Loans Obtained for On- HEETHIME 2R B 7,000 ) 7,000
Lending to Staff B
Repayment of Secured Loans EEHIEREM - - (6,274) (6,274)
Repayment of Bank Loans for EEEEFHMEZ - (5,000) ) (5,000)
On-Lending to Staff RITEM
Other Changes: HAEE -
Capitalised Borrowing Costs BEXtEERE B - 51,059 51,059
Borrowing Costs Offset by BB AR B B 36,707 36,707
the Interest Earned from the TE R R R RN AR
Corresponding Time Deposits B
Transferred to Deferred Income BRI - - (166,164)  (166,164)
Balance - End of Year FEHRAEER 3,607,593 71,000 3,566,976 7,245,569
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU T ITFIR)

The University
*B

Deferred Bank Loans Secured Total
Capital for Loans
Funds ©On-Lending (Note 22)

(Note 24) to Staff
(Note 22)

EEEE BEET [opiset
e  HEEZ B
(Bfzxosa) SRATERR (BzE22) b

(B5¥22) 2018
Balance - Beginning of Year FFEER 3,418,981 69,000 26,274 3,514,255
Changes from Financing Cash Flows: MERLNEEE
Increase in Deferred Capital Funds EIEEEESZIEMN 188,612 - - 188,612
Bank Loans Obtained for On- BETHINE ZR1T - 7,000 - 7,000
Lending to Staff B
Repayment of Secured Loans HERIERER - - (6,274) (6,274)
Repayment of Bank Loans for EEEETHHEL - (5,000) - (5,000
On-Lending to Staff RITE
Balance - End of Year FHEAEER 3,607,593 71,000 20,000 3,698,593
20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS BRMR R ETER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU T ITFIR)
The Group The University
KREBEEEE KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
Student Fees Received in Advance TENEE R HMUNE 472,841 402,874 472,841 402,874
Accounts Payable FE1TERFR 286,675 276,750 204,486 201,297
Other Creditors and Accruals HitEMIRTRESTER 248,938 151,956 88,346 109,586
Deposits and Caution Money Received 2 KRl £ 188,614 134,872 188,614 134,872
Current Accounts with Colleges EfRERER - - 190,530 212,458
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries BB A R TERERFR 177,147 166,869 177,147 166,869

1,374,2151,133,321 1,321,964 1,227,956
Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts i © FE{TBRFR FEST

Payable and Accruals BRIFRENSE D 82,730 28,100 - -
Current portion of Accounts FEATBRFR R FEETE F
Payable and Accruals BRI 1,291,485 1,105,221 1,321,964 1,227,956

The Group and the University will settle the accounts payable and loans according to payment due date. For
the remaining contractual maturities of the accounts payable, please refer to note 31.1(ii).
ABEERABSRBRARERIEE - MO B - BARMORIGSHIEIES - E2EMEE31.1G6) -

The current accounts with Colleges and Subsidaries are unsecured, interest-free and without fixed terms of
repayment.

ERRERRARMBABDERRNAEIER £ ERESEMEESHR -
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21.

22,

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EEETE R
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB ITFIR)

The Group The University
KBRS N

2018 2017 2018 2017
Staff Leave Entitlements SRR 510,509 461,678 507,340 459,287
Contract-end Gratuity and Long Service RS RER 225967 194,975 222602 193,258

Payments R <
Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions R R 24,992 22,115 24,927 22115
Salaries and Wages FeRI&E 18,717 14,426 18,328 14,184
780,185 693,194 773,197 688,844

Payable: FEAT -

Within 1 year R—FRN 532,585 446,788 528,237 443,943
After 1 year R—FR 247,600 246,406 244,960 244,901

780,185 693,194 773,197 688,844

LOANS AND BORROWINGS 5N

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUB#¥ETFT5IR) The Group The University

KERERG KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
Bank Loans for On-Lending to Staff (Note a) 8 & b4 8 ~ RITE = (Fif5ta)

Within One Year —FR 71,000 69,000 71,000 69,000
Secured Loans (Notes b and c) IR ER (o Kc)
Within One Year —FRN 4,000 6,274(| 4,000|| 6,274
Between One and Two Years —EF 4,000 4,000|| 4,000/ 4,000
Between Two and Five Years —ZhRF 12,000 12,000] | 12,000(| 12,000
Over Five Years AFDE 3,546,976( (1,411,374 -I| 4,000
3,566,976 1,433,648 20,000 26,274
Total Loans and Borrowings fEFR AR 3,637,976 1,502,648 91,000 95,274
Less: Repayable within One Year and W —EZREEZ 75,000 75,274 75,000 75,274
Included in Current Liabilities mENBE

Amount included in Non-current Liabilities —F#&{EE2IERENEE 3,562,976 1,427,374 16,000 20,000

Notes [fizE:

(a)

(b)

The bank loans for on-lending to staff are repayable within twelve months and renewable annually subject to
the bank’s consent.
EETRNE 2 RITERERA—F » AEZRITRE - BHEYAIERN -

The secured loans of the University comprise a start-up loan from the Government to provide self-financing full
time accredited post-secondary programmes. The loan is interest-free, repayable in equal annual instalments
over 10 years starting from February 2014. The loan with an outstanding amount of $20 million (2017: two
loans of $2 million and $24 million respectively) is secured by time deposits of the same amount.
AENHIEREREE—IBRBGEHNER - LAERAREEFIBERE B E LRE - (HIEERARSER -
TN F AR+ FTHEE - BRE_TET (CE—tF  MES I ATREAR-THUNAEEDNEN
KRBLIEESERAEERF AR AR o



At 30 June 2018, the secured loans of the Group included a loan from the Government for the development of
the private teaching hospital of $3,547 million (2017: $1,407 million). The loan was secured by all the assets of
CUHK Medical Centre Limited wheresoever now or at any time hereafter belonging to CUHK Medical Centre
Limited for managing and operating the hospital and the benefit of all contracts and warranties relating to
them. The loan bears no interest for the first five years starting from the drawdown date of the first instalment.
Subsequently, it bears variable interest rate which is determined annually with reference to the Government’s
fiscal reserves with the Exchange Fund established under the Exchange Fund Ordinance. The first repayment
will commence from 19 March 2023.

S ZEN\FAA=TH ARERNRIERENEERAFEH=TARNTtEER(CE—tF | +IUET
TEENER  LAFERLKHBER - REFUTHBERUBAEEPNAREBHOERARNEEREE
ERHFAEERMEGRMRENERFER - ZENHE—HEFRNAMAEAFETIANE - Hi - &%
BREREE » BERSEFUTISHMERBERIMRE (IMEESEM) RIAINERSMSZEBRER - WHEFHES -
BEEREN _E=F=A+hHMK -
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23. DEFERRED INCOME IRE 5
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUEEETFTHIR)

The Group
KEAREEE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from  Others Total
EEERREEES and Government
AA&I* Block Agencies
Allocation Funds
S SELh g
PREE ~ TNEE - #HE
Research  Others RgETR TUAFHERE
ERTil Hith RS RN EE B Hith L]
2018
Balance - Beginning FHEER 308,627 195,199 146,477 56,940 532,033 1,239,276
of Year
Subventions Received/ Z2U/FEUL 224,338 69,508 173,696 110,330 241,274 819,146
Receivable =40
Recognised as income AERER (243,003)  (79,166) (21,348)  (84,354)  (53,190)  (481,061)
in the year RIUTA
Transferred to BRI (11,410)  (4,513) (317,657) (7,641) (20,864)  (362,085)
Deferred Capital Funds EEE$
Balance - End of Year fﬁﬁgﬁgﬁ% 278,552 181 ,028 (18,832) 75,275 699,253 1,215,276
To be recognised: HEHEERTE -
Within 1 year —ZFRN 238,938 - (18,832) 75,275 96,872 392,253
After 1 year — 5% 39,614 181,028 - - 602,381 823,023
278552 181,028 (18,832) 75275 699,253 1,215,276
2017
Balance - Beginning FAEER 351,269 189,686 233,362 76,796 48,429 899,542
of Year
Subventions Received/ BU/FEI 178,457 76,392 85,686 78,692 546,364 965,591
Receivable =3:0)
Recognised as income AFERNER (212,662) (69,038) (44,992) (84,715) (61,528) (472,935)
in the year HIUTA
Transferred to BRI (8,437)  (1,841) (127,579) (13,833) (1,232) (152,922)
Deferred Capital Funds EEE®
Balance - End of Year F#%f&ER 308,627 195,199 146,477 56,940 532,033 1,239,276
To be recognised: HEHESRTE ¢
Within 1 year —FR 219,192 - 146,477 56,940 96,524 519,133
After 1 year —F% 89,435 195,199 - - 435,509 720,143
1,239,276

308,627 195,199 146,477 56,940 532,033

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.



23. DEFERRED INCOME  iEfEM3s  (Continued 48)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUEAMEFTTIIR)
The University
RE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from  Others Total
IS AREEES and Government
AA&I* Block Agencies
Allocation Funds
e-SELl el

DUEE ~ TRR - #HE
Research  Others  RaETf2 TR S

B Hith BERERETR EELE Hith HEE
2018
Balance - Beginning FYAEER 308,627 195,199 146,477 56,940 103,946 811,189
of Year
Subventions Received/ BU/FELYL 224,338 69,508 173,696 110,330 75,025 652,897
Receivable =40
Recognised as income AFERHER (243,003)  (79,166) (21,348) (84,354) (52,772) (480,643)
in the year RYUTA
Transferred to BEEEGE (11,410)  (4,513) (317,657) (7,641) (20,864)  (362,085)
Deferred Capital Funds EEE®
Balance - End of Year ﬂfﬁﬁ\gﬁ;ﬁﬁ% 278,552 181 ,028 (1 8,832) 75,275 1 05,335 621 ,358
To be recognised: HEHEERTE -
Within 1 year —FR 238,938 - (18,832) 75,275 96,238 391,619
After 1 year — 18 39,614 181,028 - - 9,097 229,739
278,552 181,028 (18,832) 75,275 105,335 621,358
2017
Balance - Beginning FHAEER 351,269 189,686 233,362 76,796 48,429 899,542
of Year
Subventions Received/ ZU/FEUL 178,457 76,392 85,686 78,692 118,277 537,504
Receivable =iy

in the year HIUTA

Transferred to EEEEGE (8,437)  (1,841) (127,579) (13,833) (1,232)  (152,922)
Deferred Capital Funds EEES

Balance - End of Year F#%#EER 308,627 195,199 146,477 56,940 103,946 811,189
To be recognised: HSHEERTE -
Within 1 year —FR 219,192 - 146,477 56,940 95,887 518,496
After 1 year —FE 89,435 195,199 - - 8,059 292,693

308,627 195,199 146,477 56,940 103,946 811,189

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.
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24. DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDS EEEEEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUEEETFTHIR)

The Group and the University

APEERAD
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from Others Total
BT R SMENE and Government
AA&I* Block  Agencies
Allocation Funds
E=SELh g

PHER  INER - S
Research Others RHMETIRE - BUFHEE
I Hith FEREEETR B Hith b

Balance - 1 July 2016 —8-=
tA—H&H% 16,253 5,946 3,396,807 21,348 915 3,441,269

Transfer from Deferred L= Pl ER 8,437 1,841 127,579 13,833 1,232 152,922
Income

Transfer to the Statement of BEZEUWZE (7255) (2,459) (153,089) (11,812) (595) (175,210)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2017 Z=F—+t&7:xAH
and 1 July 2017 =+BaR=%—-t
FtA—RA4%&8F 17,435 5,328 3,371,297 23,369 1,552 3,418,981

Transfer from Deferred B8 R U 11,410 4,513 317,657 7,641 20,864 362,085
Income

Transfer to the Statement of BEEZEUIZF (12,081)  (2,893)  (146,451)  (9,591) (2,457) (173,473)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2018 Z=Z—/\&F
H~B=1TH&E: 16,764 6,948 3,542,503 21,419 19,959 3,607,593

* AA&I represents Alterations, Additions, Repairs and Improvements.



25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25. BABEARS
Due to the publicly funded nature of the University RAABRENEERIBAABER, FIUERESENRE
and its nine Colleges and the composition of their LR R R AZKLE KB REERIMIREE R
Council (being drawn from private and public B ABITEZEAS  BHEHIESINARSSHEAY
organisations), the University and its nine Colleges EEATINEGRST - SEIEHE A RH FBRASKES
ha\{e repelved from time to time donations from AR A B TR B SR o
University Council members, key management
personnel and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The receipts of such donations
have all been individually reported to the Council
and approved in accordance with the University’s
financial regulations.
All transactions relating to the purchases of AEEIFEEEEEPEE RS S REARIEE AL
goods and services and capital projects involving BT HEABRES KBS REHRATHS G - (BiSL
organisations in which a member of the University’s 35 B IR IR A EA Y B P8 Bl B IE 2 B SR RE R HE 4T o
Council may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.
In addition to the transactions and balances PRTEARBIFER S EMEm NIRET 5 RiGE: - &
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, BHL TR S5
there are the following material related party
transactions:
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUB#ETT5R)

The University

R
2018 2017
(i) Income received from (i) RMBASESHKE
Subsidiaries
Service fees and rental charges AT B KA &

41,060

The Group and the

34,781

University
KRBHERERAZ
2018 2017
(ii) Key Management Personnel (i) TEERASHEE
Compensation
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits Fre RHMGEREEET) 49,702 49,661
Post-employment benefits RIKTEF] 5,578 5,548
55,280 55,209
The Group and the
University
PN SN
2018 2017
(i) Loans to Related Parties (iii) ERPRABS
Loans to key management under the ﬁ%iﬁﬂgﬁ;%ggf%aﬂ‘l?g}"
University’s Staff Loan Scheme (Note 26) EREE AR 26)
Beginning of the year HAEFEAT) 13,100 11,630
Net loans (refunded)/granted during the year AERNZFECEN/EX (100) 1,470
End of the year FAERE 13,000 13,100
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26. STAFF LOANS

Staff loans, with interest at Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus an interest spread
and capped at prime rate minus another interest
spread, are available to eligible staff members of
the retirement scheme(s) operated by the University.
The loan is repayable upon demand or at the expiry
of loan term due at the end of each calendar year
unless renewed by the University.

27. COMMITMENTS iR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. HEEEMH

ABRHEERTAERASDRASEIRNOHHEE -
FRBEBRITRAZHFEMFIRELE - LWLUREEF
A —FRERL LR - RIFXB AR EEFE
B BRIZERENEEFENENIAENTEAS
BRTAEES °

(LLAETTIIR)

Commitments outstanding at 30 June 2018 not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:
RIB—N\FAR=1H ' REMFRFERE M ABEITOT

The Group The University
KEARERS KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
Capital Expenditure Commitments B AKiE
Contracted for B 2549 3,746,367 4,615,957 278,470 692,946
Authorised but not Contracted for ERAEEN KL 811,225 538,235 577,975 538,235
4,557,592 5,154,192 856,445 1,231,181

28. OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLES
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B ESTHE
(LUAETTIIR)

At 30 June 2018, the total future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:
T2 N\FAR=1+H  REBTAIERAEEEE  RENNRERSWABEITMOT

The Group The University

KEAZERE KE
2018 2017 2018 2017
Within one year —=FRN 17,827 15,647 14,923 12,830
Between one to five years —FEAhF 9,303 6,659 8,730 6,394
27,130 22,306 23,653 19,224




29.

30.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS HEHSRIE
(LB ITIR)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

At 30 June 2018, the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:

REZZB—N\FAB=+H ' RETAMRRIEEHEE - BREMHREESTERBEESTAT

The Group The University
KEARERE PN

2018 2017 2018 2017

Within one year —FR 10,549 12,235 9,501 11,187

Between one to five years —ZEhF 6,088 11,952 5,476 10,292

16,637 24,187 14,977 21,479

Operating lease charges for the year AFEELEHEER 13,182 11,843 12,163 11,527
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 30. BARER

The University is a government subvented tertiary
education institution established under the laws of
the Government which objects are to provide learning
and research in wide range of undergraduate and
postgraduate programmes in technology, science,
commerce, arts and other areas. Its activities are
mainly funded by government grants, tuition fees,
donations, income generated from self-financing
activities and investment income.

The Group defines capital as including various
general and restricted fund balances. The various
funds of the Group represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fee income,
donations and investment returns. These funds
are managed according to the relevant grant and
funding conditions, where applicable, and the
Group’s investment and financial management
guidelines and procedures are established in
accordance with the relevant statutes of the Group
with the view of meeting the objects of the Group
and safeguarding the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

There has been no change in the Group’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements, except for the balance of
GDREF as disclosed in note 12.

AARBEEEBEITHEER TR —FTRERE
BB LHERE - STHIRHEASERERME RN
B B2 B - XBERHEMEEBE RIS - X
BREBETEEHEARMEIE - 28  IBEFIR - B
BEBIEAEMARIRERREEZDR -

AEBBENEACREE—RESNERES - KEE
BEMNRIREERETRERREAMEE - I8 - 18
RETRIR KA B FTHERY - R%FE 2 B RIBAER R E
WrBh e RIEBEIEREE - MiRE - MIBEEIRESIR
BB RIEAX AR RRAARIZE T E LUREEIA SRS
BB IR Rt E KA RRERIFHEL ERED -

BREEE 1 2FR AR B — I R R R E 2 - KB
BHNEAEERREEFMER - MWRHNE - MAN
FREBHEMIMREMAIBEREK -
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31.

311

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Financial instruments of the Group and the University
include bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partnerships
and alternative investments, which have exposure
to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and equity
price risks arising in the normal course of the
Group’s and the University’s operations. These risks
are managed by the Group’s and the University’s
financial management policies and practices as
described below.

Bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partner-
ships and alternative investments

(i) Credit risk

The Group’s and the University’s exposure
to credit risk is mainly attributable to the
deposits they maintained with various financial
institutions and investment securities held by
fund managers, including held-to-maturity debt
securities and trading securities. The Group
and the University established their guidelines
to minimise the credit risk associated with these
financial assets. Held-to-maturity debt securities
are all at “investment grade” credit ratings as
assigned by international credit rating agencies
at the time of purchase. Trading securities
are all of good investment grade and are held
through appointed professional investment
managers who would manage the portfolios
through comprehensive monitoring systems.
The Group and the University have no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties.

Internal policies have also been set up to reduce
credit risk associated with bank deposits. Such
policies do not only restrict deposits to be placed
at Authorised Institutions (Note) of good credit
ratings but also address concentration risk by
limiting the total amount deposited with each
institution.

Credit risk associated with loans and other
receivables is immaterial to the Group and
the University and all doubtful receivables are
adequately provided for.

(Note: Authorised Institutions are deposit-taking
institutions that are licensed by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority to operate in Hong Kong.)

31.

31.1 IRITER ~ BIEESE - BAES
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(i) Liquidity risk

The Group and the University have sufficient
funds to finance its ongoing working capital
requirements. Measures are implemented to
regularly monitor the current and expected
liquidity requirements of the Group and the
University, ensuring that sufficient cash reserves
and readily realisable marketable securities are
maintained to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following table presents the earliest
settlement dates of the Group’s and the
University’s financial liabilities at the end of the

(i) FeEHE & Ehg

REEBERABEEHNREE T BN FELER
F o UL BAHFIEHESREMRERBEENT
B LURAHEENADESRAIMBHERNIES
% LETEZE -

DT —BRIIHABEERABHE A ZBEERER
XfTEE - EIREHNZRITRBEERE(BELEH
FRFENFEZ L - EHFIRLUZENFIRE EF

reporting period, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on current rates at the end of
the reporting period):

B AR E B0 FIRETE) |

(@) The Group ~ KE%EEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUS#TTTI7R)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
REMZKITRBESREE
2018

Carrying  Within 1 Year More than More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and Amount
on Demand  but within but within More

2 Years 5 Years
—&A HBiE—F HBTE ka2
RESHE  mgEk  @-sx GRSER ML B

Accounts Payable and  feffaRzR R MERT 1,374,215 1,291,485 - 82,730 1,374,215
Accruals E=)z]
Provision for Employee (g g fg### 780,185 532,585 196,177 39,027 12,396 780,185
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings  {&z2 3,637,976 75,000 4,000 4,927,421 5,006,421
5,792,376 1,899,070 200,177 5,049,178 _ 12,396 7,160,821

2017

Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and Amount
on Demand  but within but within More

2 Years 5 Years
—%R  BE—5 @Be-F #F
BEEH  gpEkx  E-ER BRFR HME @E

Accounts Payable and FE{IBRFR R FEST 1,133,321 1,105,221 - 28,100 - 1,133,321
Accruals =H

Provision for Employee {&& g%/ s 693,194 446,788 208,299 34,934 3,173 693,194
Benefits

Loans and Borrowings {&£zk 1,502,648 75,274 4,000 2,030,697 4,000 2,113,971

3,329,163 1,627,283 212,299 2,093,731 7,173 3,940,486
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(b) The University KE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BUAETTTI7T)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BENZRRRESRHE

2018
Carrying  Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and Amount
on Demand  but within but within More
2 Years 5 Years
—Fx  BE—5F Be-F &F
RESE  aygmk  B-ER EARSEA ME @@
Accounts Payable and FE{JERFI B FEET 1,321,964 1,321,964 - - 1,321,964
Accruals EH
Provision for Employee {& & igF| %t 773,197 528,237 194,539 38,025 12,396 773,197
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings &3¢ 91,000 75,000 4,000 12,000 - 91,000
2,186,161 1,925,201 198,539 50,025 12,396 2,186,161
2017
Carrying ~ Within 1 Year More than  More than 5 Years Total
amount or 1 Year 2 Years and amount
on Demand  but within but within More
2 Years 5 Years
—5R H#e—F #e-F LT
RESE  gmEk  B-&R GRSEA HME @@
Accounts Payable and FE{fBRE R FESTER 1,227,956 1,227,956 - - 1,227,956
Accruals
Provision for Employee {g& g%/t 688,844 443,943 207,501 34,227 3,173 688,844
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings {2k 95,274 75,274 12,000 4,000 95,274

2,012,074

(iii) Interest rate risk

As to interest-bearing financial assets, the Group
and the University hold fixed-rate bank deposits
and debt securities.

The Group’s interest-bearing financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are not significant.
The Group does not expect short-term fluctuations
in market interest rates will have significant impact
to the Group’s results of operations.

1,747,173

(i) 1) 2= &gz

211,501

46,227

7,173 2,012,074

HNELEFENENEMEE  ABERBRAES
AEFAERIRITFRMETSES

AREHENRERRAERNFEERMEM - K
BEBRTRHITIS T RAVKEHIR BN T e AP EEEE
WEERREBREANTE -



During the year under review, the Group and the
University have no interest rate risk from interest-
bearing loan since the only interest-bearing
loan taken out by the University is for the sole
purpose of operating a staff loan scheme and any
fluctuations in market interest rates only affect
the staff loan borrowers.

The following tables indicate the effective interest
rates of these interest-bearing financial assets:

ﬁ’\ZISEZ BUFE - KEEER

RARBIRBRESEMm

ZHFREHNRE  RAELEREENERNET
f‘*‘é FTEl > MEERF R ERE 2 B A8 TAHE -

LT —BRIHREF SMAEME EZ ERA X

(a) The Group PN
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LU&#FTI7R)
2018 2017
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount
Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.
BERFANR  REEHE BREFENXR KREEHE
Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits  EEEEKRTFR 220 17,789,481 2.00 15,551,119
(b) The University KE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUEHETFTHIR)
2018 2017
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount
Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.
BRFANR REEHE BEENR KREEEHE
Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits ~ EEEERTFHX 2.27 13,230,463 214 12,695,383

87



88

As at 30 June 2018, itis estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s
surplus by approximately $71,013,000 (2017:
$60,173,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to interest rate
risk for investments in short-term time deposits
in existence at that date. The Group may be
exposed to interest rate risk indirectly via its
holding in the investment portfolios which
hold debt instruments. Increase/decrease in
investment income from these investment
portfolios arising from interest rate change
however is not considered in the sensitivity
analysis above due to insufficient information
provided by fund managers. The 50 basis points
increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the
next reporting period.

(iv) Currency risk

The functional currency of the Group and the
University is Hong Kong dollars (‘HKD”). Both the
Group’s and the University’s monetary assets are
denominated mainly in HKD and United States
dollars (“USD”) while their monetary liabilities
are predominantly in HKD. Those assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
HKD and USD are not material.

About 26% of the Group’s and 31% of the
University’s financial assets (including cash,
bank deposits with banks, debt, equity securities
and investments) are denominated in USD,
but it is considered that risk of movement in
exchange rate between the HKD and the USD
is insignificant as the HKD is currently pegged to
the USD under the linked exchange rate system
adopted by the Government.

The following tables show the amounts of
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debt and investments) denominated
in various currencies at the end of the reporting
period:

MREZZE—N\FAA=+H - BEAEEMA]EEE
BRETE - WA REN/ D A+RTF - KB
RERNBSSIEN/ BN ET—BE—8=FTx
(ZE2—tF  AFE—FTtE=TI)°

RS TR SRR AR AR O
i AR ABEREA L B SR TR R AR
ORI - MR SAEERERAEIEN - MR
BT AEAEE L RA NGNS A
B R ERYBUBE e /0 B+ B
FRIGEEBHEE FEE A LR R AR
BEBORTA -

(iv) FMEERz:

REBBERABHINEEBAEE  SBMEEL
BERETAT  MEWUERBLEBLAE - &
MEENRELINERENSTRL AKX -

AREBBERABHALUERAREEBNEHMEE
ANBLEMEEMENEI 2= TANBERZ=
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MEHRERFIET - REEEER HETIHBHBE
REZERTERK -
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MEEZSR(EEERL  THRERTHER - FE
RZE)



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUB#ETT5IR)
(@) The Group KEARERE
2018 2017
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
£%8 s mE ®%8 LS RE
Currency &g ENBEA L ENES
HKD A 15,852,083 67 13,492,521 65
UsD EIn 6,291,045 26 5,615,425 27
RMB AR# 1,344,788 6 1,224,798 6
Euro BT 137,359 1 89,926 -
Pounds Sterling T 28,743 - 70,342 -
Others Hith 121,507 - 305,971 2
23,775,525 100 20,798,983 100
(b) The University KE
2018 2017
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
&% LEEME &% HiEEmE
Currency &#& EMESL ENBEA L
HKD Pl 11,153,466 60 10,571,428 61
UsD =TT 5,851,604 31 5,185,794 30
RMB AR# 1,321,166 7 1,202,476 7
Euro BT 137,359 1 89,864 -
Pounds Sterling HE 20,457 - 62,228 -
Others Hith 117,088 1 301,750 2
18,601,140 100 17,413,540 100

About 6% of the Group’s and 7% of the University’s
financial assets are denominated in RMB (2017:
6% and 7% respectively). As the percentages of
financial assets denominated in currencies other
than HKD, RMB and USD to the total financial
assets of the Group and the University were 1%
and 2% respectively as at 30 June 2018 (2017:
2% and 2% respectively), exposure to foreign
currency risk is not significant.

AREEBERABHEUAREAEEEENEREE
DRRFLEERMEEMENB N ZARERZE (=
T—tF  MHBEERZAREBDLZE) - K-
NFERA=+H » ABERRABLUEE - ARE
BETLIIMIEEHREZEMEEGREMEEE
ARBEERZ—REAZZ CE—tF  AHIRE
BARZRERZT) MABREBRRBAEEAR
BOSMEE SR IL TR o
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(v) Equity price risk )

The Group and the University are exposed to
equity price risk arising primarily from equity
investments and unit trusts classified under
trading securities (see note 16). The equity
price risk of the investments is managed by
professional managers through their own risk
management and assessment policies. The
investment managers’ investment strategies
are governed by the University’s investment
and asset allocation guidelines. The Group and
the University also monitor the risk exposure by
reviewing periodic reports from the custodians
and investment managers. The Group’s and the
University’s investments in equity securities are
spread over major stock markets in the world.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices
of the respective listed equity securities and
unit trusts had been 5% higher/lower, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s and
the University’s surplus for the year would have
been increased/decreased by $122,901,000
(2017: $112,359,000) and $92,534,000 (2017:
$86,121,000) respectively as a result of the
changes in fair value of the listed equity securities
and unit trusts.

The following tables show the breakdown of
the values of the Group’s and the University’s
investments in listed equity securities and
unit trusts by trading market at the end of the
reporting period:

(a) The Group REEEFE

A E{EFE Az

REBHEERABIEHRRERERERERE S
MR BEERES NARAESREUERES (W
F116) - R RERERAFERELEZEMMIH
FTRYEG AT AL R B IREUR ES R E - MBIRELTIE
HIETIRE RRRE L RIRFE A BT HIFTRE KRB E
DBCHEE| 0 REERRABTETRTERERIR
BSIPAEHRRR & LIETE A b - KEPEERE R AP
BFRENBRAESREVEAEEMINHRAZTER

e K

REEH  ERFESREMEIESHERL
Tt/ THBERZA - FEM—) TSRS T
BRBERLT  REBBRRABNRTFANEREG &
R EmiRRES REAEEERSNATEEES)
SHEN/ BP—RBZFTZBA+EZ—T (=
E—tF —fF-FIE=TAEATORAT
“BEA+=80TR (CFE—tEF AFTAE—T
—E—T-

DTF-—BRIHEEARBEERABREERT
ZinZ FhlkEREAEEESVERE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUB#ETF T5IR)

2018

2017

Equities  Unit Trusts

Total Equities  Unit Trusts Total

Market mi% BAES BEUEFEER B BEAGE BAEitA: B8
United States =M 828,837 137,092 965,929 797,026 217,034 1,014,060
Hong Kong &8 580,015 596,595 1,176,610 538,072 468,243 1,006,315
Europe BN 239,296 - 239,296 207,724 - 207,724
Asia Pacific BXE 20,490 5,581 26,071 - 6,011 6,011
excluding EHRI
Hong Kong
Others Hth 50,118 - 50,118 13,079 - 13,079

1,718,756 739,268

2,458,024 1,555,901 691,288 2,247,189




(b) The University KR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUB#ETITIR)

2018 2017
Equities Unit Trusts Total Equities  Unit Trusts Total

Market i3 RAGES BAEFRER @FE AES BHAEFEEE B
United States ESE 808,233 137,092 945,325 797,026 217,034 1,014,060
Hong Kong &8 88,089 522,403 610,492 83,897 403,650 487,547
Europe BM 227,107 - 227,107 207,724 - 207,724
Asia Pacific XE - 17,628 - 17,628 - - -

excluding &R

Hong Kong
Others Hity 50,118 - 50,118 13,079 - 13,079

1,191,175

659,495 1,850,670 1,101,726

620,684

31.2 Limited partnerships and alternative

investments

There may be frequent short-term fluctuations in the
value of the limited partnerships and the alternative
investments during the durations of the investment
horizons. Both types of investments are under
the close scrutiny of the University Administration
and the University’s Finance Committee and
Investment Sub-committee. Professional fund
managers handling these investments have ample
experience in administering endowment funds of
prestigious private universities in the United States.
They manage the investment portfolios by using
comprehensive monitoring systems to minimise
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency
risk and equity price risk, where applicable, of
the underlying assets through diversifications of
their investment portfolios, frequent on-site due
diligence visits, proprietary quantitative analyses
and other relevant measures. The funds deployed
for these two categories of investment are of
non-UGC source, mainly comprising donations
and University’s own cash reserves. Short-term
diminution in the fair values of these investments
will not have significantimpact on the Group’s daily
operations.

N2 RESHBRERSERE

IREAGBIRERSARENEETEERIRERFAHE
SHARVKED - ABEEBMABHHFEEERHETH
REZSEENIRLMERENER - REEMAER
ENESEEREEXERRNIARELALEEES
BEEs - fIE AR IR HIBEEEE (WD EIRE
EHEMHE - BB MEHBERBEREETARIE
BEMERANEES  RBES - FIX  INERREER
BER: - EMERENECUIFREBSARHEE
BEEERMIEREEEEE - TREREINRER
RABHRFEE - LFRENEHRELTEREKR
BEBNEREEF -

1,722,410
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(i)

The following table shows the amounts of asset () LT —BRIIHAEERRSASBHREEENEH
allocation in the limited partnerships at the end £%F ¢

of the reporting period:

The Group and the University REBHEBERALB

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUE#F5T3I7R)

2018 2017

% % &% %
Hedge Funds HHES 245,750 13 295,843 18
Cash He 107,628 6 - -
Private Equity LB Rt 428,720 22 348,468 21
Real Estate EhhE 242,816 13 196,856 12
Fixed Income TEEUA 132,741 7 115,411 7
International Equity IRERER 622,447 32 572,180 35
Natural Resources KARER 119,508 6 122,592 7
Others Hith 18,281 1 3,970 -
Total bk 1,917,891 100 1,655,320 100

The following table shows the amounts of (i) LITF—EBRIEMEEHSEREEENRNS
asset allocation in alternative investments 5

at the end of the reporting period:

The Group and the University KEBERERKS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LU&#FIT5I7R)

2018 2017
®%F % &% %
Hedge Funds HHES 296,359 64 264,125 64
Real Estate BitE 71,027 16 60,451 15
Private Equity FLE AR 93,649 20 84,946 21

Total R 461,035 100 409,522 100




31.3 Fair value measurement

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 30
June 2018 and 2017.

The fair values of listed equity, debt securities and
unit trusts are based on quoted market bid prices
at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of unlisted equity-linked notes are
based on the valuations provided by the counterparty
financial institutions.

Fair values for held-to-maturity debt securities are
based on their trading values in the secondary
market on or nearest to the end of the reporting
period.

Since the limited partnership investments and the
alternative investments are not readily marketable,
the University management determines their fair
values based on the capital account statements
provided by the General Partner of the partnership
and the administrators or investment managers
of the alternative investments. However, such
estimated fair values may differ from the values that
would have been determined had an open market
for these investments existed.

HKFRS13, Fair value measurement defined the
category of three-level fair value hierarchy. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in valuation technique
as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
siginificant unobservable inputs.

The table below analyses financial instruments,
measured at fair values as at the end of the
respective reporting periods on a recurring basis,
by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised:

3.3 DREERE
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SRE{EHRAREEESKDH -
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BT H A SR ARARHMNEARRE - T8
ZAERRREARTSETEENEETEER -

EARAMBHRESLERNEI3R " ARBEFE, RE=E
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(a) Financial assets carried at fair value

BRASEBEIRNEHEE

The Group pNC-EE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUE#ITIIR)
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fih— Fih= Fih= B
Trading Securities nEEES 3,163,723 93,232 - 3,256,955
Available-for-sale Securities A ESES 264,015 - - 264,015
Limited Partnership Investments [RE&EIRE - - 1,917,891 1,917,891
Alternative Investments FERE - - 461,035 461,035
Total fasg 3,427,738 93,232 2,378,926 5,899,896
2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Em— k= k= EoEE]
Trading Securities E=§=F-£; 2,691,378 129,476 - 2,820,854
Available-for-sale Securities A EEE 262,772 - - 262,772
Limited Partnership Investments [RE&IRE - - 1,655,320 1,655,320
Alternative Investments BIERE - - 409,522 409,522
Total PISE 2,954,150 129,476 2,064,842 5,148,468
The University A%
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB T ITIIR)
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fih— =3 = i8R
Trading Securities EEES 2,817,873 93,232 - 2,911,105
Limited Partnership Investments RESEIRE - - 1,917,891 1,917,891
Alternative Investments HHERE - - 461,035 461,035
Total fazg 2,817,873 93,232 2,378,926 5,290,031
2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Eih— = s = L]
Trading Securities TNEEES 2,429,371 129,476 - 2,558,847
Limited Partnership Investments BRESERE - - 1,655,320 1,655,320
Alternative Investments FiainE - - 409,522 409,522
Total PLSEE

2,429,371

129,476

2,064,842

4,623,689



During the year there were no transfers between
financial instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

The fair value of the securities under Level 2
is determined by reference to the prices at the
reporting date provided by the fund managers and
have been translated using the foreign currency at
the end of the reporting period where appropriate.

The following table shows a reconciliation from
the beginning balances to the ending balances
as for the fair value measurements in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy for both the Group and
the University:

The Group and the University =~ AKEAZEpE k&4

FERRBIRBESFR—HEFHR -2 HBE -

BHEZRESNAREBENSEEEITEMRMA R
HRERMET @ AERREARZERTE -

MTF-—BRIITABEBRABEEBARBEFR
=MEM T B2 F)EFALFEEREE) |

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51 7R)
2018
Opening balance as at 1 July 2017 FHFEER 2,064,842
Total gain included in the Statements of EREEEENSERF 222,006
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure RO %
Additions IR 158,205
Disposals HE (66,127)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2018 FHEAEER 2,378,926
2017
Opening balance as at 1 July 2016 FAAEER 1,784,774
Total gain included in the Statements of EREEEZENEZRA 213,282
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure ROREUS S
Additions TR 151,043
Disposals HE (84,257)
Closing balance as at 30 June 2017 FHEAGER 2,064,842

All gains and losses for the fair value measurements
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy were
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure for both the Group and
the University for the years ended 30 June 2018
and 30 June 2017.

ARBRERABHFENSFH=-eMTHE 82 _"F—
NEARA=THR=Z—CtFAB=+HMERER
EEISTRIER ©
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The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are the investments in the three limited
partnerships and the alternative investments
arranged by an investment consultant in the United
States as detailed in Note 31.2.

The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are not traded in active markets. In the
absence of an active market, an investment’s fair
value is estimated on the basis of an analysis of the
investee’s financial position and results, risk profile,
prospects and other factors, as well as by reference
to market valuations for similar entities quoted in
an active market. Given the bespoke nature of the
analysis in respect of each holding, it is not practical
to quote a range of key unobservable inputs.

Although the Group and the University are of
the view that fair value measurements in Level
3 financial assets based on the capital account
statements provided by the General Partner of the
three limited partnerships and the administrators or
investment managers of the alternative investments
are appropriate, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions by the underlying investment
managers engaged by the limited partnerships and
the University could lead to different measurements
of the fair values. The US-based firm of investment
consultant’s advice has been sought and its
analysis of returns of widely-used market indices for
alternative investments (i.e. funds of hedge funds,
private equity funds, real estate funds and natural
resources funds) against general conditions of
investment markets suggests that while the returns
of these indices are historical and past performance
is not a guarantee of future results, these indices
can be applied to a simple overall quantitative
sensitivity analysis relating to the fair values of
major alternative investments in the Group’s and
the University’s Level 3 financial assets.

Assuming that

(i) the widely-used market indices for funds
of hedge funds, private equity funds, real
estate funds and natural resources funds had
increased/decreased by 5% and the fair values
of assets under “Fixed Income” and “Others”
of the Level 3 financial assets had increased/
decreased by 5% and

ARBEBERABNER = EMEERIEMEE3.218
RO =EREGHIEE AE—HEBEREBRMARR
PR SFERE -

REEBRABNER = 2B ETLIFNTRIEHET
BETEE - MRBRENEIERNTS - AAR
ENHBERIEKBREHRNOI BRI RER - R
o AIRMEMERZ M WERRHPIRERETIS
WEEUEETEME - BRI ERREZOMNE
BAR - JEHR—RIERTABRBIBL T E AT

HARBEBR AR /EFR = EMEEN A REE
DERIREGBIRENEIEBARSBIRE ZIRETIE
BEESEEARMREMNERRBRIGEEZSEN
% BREGHBARKABIEARETIEEATRA
73ARERER - B BHTRNAREE - KBEBEAUN
EBIR BRI AR - hiBEZERES
RIREWEAES - EREREE  BERES - XX
BRES)EREEERE TSN — 8018
ERAfR - ARF REAIEB RIS BENBIRMAE
BRIRAL T UATE ARG SRV EER - S HEHAVE(L A
RERBEERABFNER = MEENARE
EFRE R BUREITRVE(LETE -

RaX

() EWHIBEZERMERREES - LB
AL BHERSRRAEREENEHLA/T
BAMOARESFHR=-EMEET “ERMA"
M CHEAM” FHRMEENAREBELA/THES
AR



(i) the prices of international markets equities had
been 5% higher/lower,

with all other variables held unchanged, the fair
values of the Group’s and the University’s Level
3 financial assets, and hence the Group’s and
the University’s surplus would have increased/
decreased by approximately $118,946,000 (2017:
$103,242,000).

(b) Financial assets carried at other than fair value

REAZERE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The Group

Carrying
amount at

Fair value
at 30 June

30 June 2018 2018
RIZE—N\F RIE2—N\F

(i) XEE/IRR/FHEHBRENER LA/ THRESZ
ﬁ ’

MEMASHIRERETE  KABEBRABNEFR
=R EMBENAREBENKBEERERABREALN
BEBSEN/BON—R—T N \BATEEA T (=
T—tF —RGE=F+HUE=-F) -

TLUARBEIRNESHMEE

(LUAETTIIR)

Fair value measurements as at

30 June 2018
RZE—N\FRB=+H
BASEERZ

Carrying Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 amountat at 30 June

30 June 2017 2017
KoB—tE RoT—tF

AA=+H AB=+H ANR=+H KRA=+H
RIBRE £ %A HAREE SH— SH- £Hh= MERESE mMAREME
Held-to-maturity ~ ##H5Z=ZIHIH 3,586,975 3,532,784 2,114,278 1,418,506 3,516,558 3,530,716
debt securities 1E%EE
The University ~ K%
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TTIIR)
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2018
HZE—N\EXA=+H
Carrying Fair value BASEERTE Carrying Fair value
amount at at30June Level1 Level?2 Level 3 amountat at 30 June
30 June 2018 2018 30 June 2017 2017
RIE—N\E RIZ—N\HF R-E2—tF HZZ2—tHF
AA=+H AB=+H ANR=+H KRA=+H
HIBRE£%E WAREE FHh— FHh= £Hh= MEREESE NAREE
Held-to-maturity  ##EZZIEAH 3,400,503 3,346,312 1,928,810 1,417,502 3,372,181 3,887,301
debt securities EEEE

The fair value of the securities under Level 2
is determined by reference to the prices at the
reporting date provided by the banks and have
been translated using the foreign currency at the
end of the reporting period where appropriate.

BhE ZiRE SR A REEH R ERITAREZREH
BRMETE - WERARSHARZERITE -
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31.4 Interests in investment funds

The University holds interests in investment funds
investing in the following asset classes. The purpose
of these investment funds is to generate investment
income for the University. These investment funds
are managed by professional fund managers.

The table below sets out the interests held by the
University in these investment funds. The maximum
exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the
financial assets held.

Investment fund classes

M4 EEEETANERS

ABWEREN TIEERNREESIER - BLR
EESNENRAABRMIUREBENA - BEREESRE
HREEASTIRAEIE -

DT —BRINHKBHEREE S 2HEL - IRE RGN
RANBXEZEHMEENREE -

2018
Carrying amount

Number of included in financial
Investment assets at fair value
funds through profit or loss

BREESER wRERERE BEHEBZENUAR
& BEJRNEMEE
RIBRES%E
HKD’million
BEAT
Equities i 11 1,230
Fixed Income EBIA 3 93
Hedge Funds RS 7 296
Real Estate EithE 6 4
Private Equity LB 10 94
Limited Partnership REGBIRE 9 1,918
Total Ha%E 3,702
2017
Carrying amount
Number of included in financial
Investment assets at fair value
Investment fund classes funds through profit or loss
REESER BrEES CEHEBAEMLAR
HE BEIRNEMEE
RIBRES%E
HKD’million
BEATT
Equities % E 16 1,130
Fixed Income EE2UA 4 130
Hedge Funds HhES 7 264
Real Estate EithE 6 60
Private Equity FLERLE 6 85
Limited Partnership IREGHIRE 3 1,655
Total PlSEE| 3,324




32.

The carrying amount of such investments included
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is the same as the fund price per unit multiplied by
number of units held, or the total net assets if the unit
information is not available. The carrying amount
constitutes less than 1% of the appropriate total
net assets of the underlying investment funds as at
30 June 2018 (2017: less than 1%). Such carrying
amount represents the maximum exposure of the
University at the end of the reporting period.

All the above investment funds are passive
investments only. The University has no control of,
influence on or financial support to any of these
funds.

The University can redeem the above investment
funds within one business day to one year,
depending on the requirement of each investment
fund.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s and the University’s fixed assets
are depreciated on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. The Group
and the University review the estimated useful
lives and residual values of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives and residual values are based on
management’s historical experience with similar
assets and, where applicable, taking into account
anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement.
The depreciation charges for future periods are
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

32.

REZ2—N\FAA=1H  CiEEZMNUARERET]
ARIERMEBEENRE SRR EUASERTUSTEE
U SNERBEMENE  HREEFEAER - K
HERAEERAREEEZRFEED 1% (22—
F: Dh1%) - ZERE SRR RABNIER B A g™
Z e Ekg -

D EFrBEREREEMEREINIRE - KERBITE %
L RMEMMBIERU LERES -

HETRIIEESMMERFIR - KERUTDH—EL
ERENN S —FARSEA - BELL E&E -

R B k5T B HI iR

ABERERAZNETEE  SMAGTRAERRE
EME(E - LERANETIIE - 85 KBEERKE
EREETEENITRERAEHEELURESESE
FEARMNFTES L - JAFREEREEZENEE
BN RIERLEENEER - RERIRMIVEA RE
o ANLERIERTRIFERE » RRFHIITER
IR -
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33. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2018 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

33.

HE_Z-/\FRA=+THLFECHEBENRENR
RUMBET ~ FET ER R R UREENTE

BEAPHBRABLA - FESEILSRM SIRE
3]~ BRATHERI R FRRF o BAF{8ET « #MATHERI R RREMN
BE_Z-N\FAHA=THILEFEMREN  mME
REFMBEREPEA - ZEEUTHEERARAS
EEEAVER

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfer of investment

property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

HKFRS 16, Leases

1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018

1 January 2018
1 January 2019

RT3 B EEz eI EETHAR AERT

EAUHRELANFER - €MITE
BEMFREEAE15E - REZFAR/IA

ERMBMEERIFEIORMER] - REVE: REVEEZ
FEEFMFRERERET) - BREE22UE - INEXSRFAGKE

EAUHREERFE 6K - HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and interpretations is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially
completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date
is based on the information currently available to
the Group, and further impacts may be identified
before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 30 June 2019. The Group may also
change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially
applied in the consolidated financial statements.

2018%F1H1H
2018%F1H1H
2018F1H1H
2018%F1H1H
2019%1H81H

RBBBINIETHARLFIZET ] ERI KRB E A
FREAR Z TRERRZE - MUAEREEREANAN - #METHERIZ AR
HEISTREN AR ER AU BRREREARE - &
STREAR B E—RHEN T OGRIT - BEPAXREEEY
BRI S EREMERE BRI E RIS 151889
AHMEEEARTR - BT RRESFERRERR AT EE
BIITE - AR5 BIEFSTRRIFHE B BN AR
BRTAEEHNESR > KPR IEEZFEINCT
—NWEAR=THEZGEMBERREXERARERES
R E - KEBBENREENHSH ISR - GEEE
EIR - EEZFHEAEGERMTSHF®RE -



HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets,
including the measurement of impairment for financial
assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand,
HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes
the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

(i) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at
(1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”).
The classification is determined based on the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets and the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets. Based on
a preliminary assessment, the Group expects
that the new classification and measurement
requirements will not have a material impact on
its accounting for financial assets.
(ii) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the expected
credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary
for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure either a 12-month
expected credit loss or a lifetime expected credit
loss, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may
result in an earlier recognition of credit losses on
the Group’s other financial assets. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the Group expects that
the new impairment model will not have a material
impact on its accounting for accounts receivable
and other financial assets.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new framework for income
recognition. It introduces a five-step model in order
to determine when and how to recognise income.
Income is recognised when an entity transfers control
of goods or services to a customer at the amount to
which the entity expects to be entitled. The standard
is not expected to have any material impact to the
income recognition of the Group.

EEMBRESEAEME TEMIT A,
ERMBREENEME "EMTHE , B TAS
FTRIRZIRITER] - FEGEERIEIME ST A
ERRETE, - BBUBRELNFEMREIAEHEE
EINRETE  BiEeREEREEREPENEZH
ME - H—70HE - BEMBREERBIFEMELES
FTHERISE 3R AR MR LR EM T AL KE 2
REtB2mREIRE - TERFHEREN - AT
RBEBVIGEMBRR TR ENT *

() EnkEtE

EEMBREENEORER AT EEMEENR
Bl BIA)LUSER AT E ~ (OUAREERE
BEEEE A BB RQLIAREEE A HES)
STABHEMEENE - SINEUANKEEEIESME
EZEBRALUREMEEZSHNRERERH - 17
RIS - REREETRRIEI D Rt BRETTY
ERMEECENRIBENEARE

(i) B

BB REERFMRHZIRERILL " FREME
Gi8% ) RXMREEBGERE3G "EBEEE
% B - RIBTREMEGIRAER - BABTHER
KEMHROEBRERX - ML - HEFREER
ELURBERRER R BIREERA AT =ER
TREMEEIRAEUK A TREMEGIAZ - #R{ERICAIEE
BHRABERRFMHMEMEEMDEERK - 8
RINTEHL KRR RERN TS HEIR
MEEMEMEEC S REENEATE -

ERUHREERFE15E NEEEFARNA
BAUEHRE LR E T SEMEE T HAVULATESIAESR -
EBIAT —ERTEER - LIREE RFLUR AN HEEBIL
A o A RETE EREAS B S E ARSI HIAEIE R AR & RS
DIEFREEHERESRI ST T LIRS - ZERITRE T EH
REHEHNABEEEARE -
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HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2.6, currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The
Group enters into some leases as the lessor and
others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject
to practical expedients, lessees will account for
all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease, the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on
a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses
would continue to be recognised on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for fixed assets which are
currently classified as operating leases.

The application of the new accounting model is
expected to lead to an increase in both assets
and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the Consolidated and
University Statements of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure over the period of the lease. As
disclosed in note 29, at 30 June 2018 the Group’s
and the University’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
$16,637,000 and $14,977,000 respectively, which are
payable either within 1 year or between 1 and 5 years
after the reporting date. Some of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS
16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a
more detailed analysis to determine the amounts
of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS
16 and the effects of discounting.

ERUHMEERF16E "THE,

WKIEE2.6FIEER + KERRERNIFHHEEE 2 AMEM
EREEME  UIRFHEHESRUTRSAHEER
HEEITERTRIE - KBERSHFERHBEARAREA
FIAFEMEE -

TREBE BTSRRI E 1 6T S AR SR
BB G RIBEREATE - A - EBUBEREE
AIEE1BIF—HEE - AEARTBRORMEBERE RITE
HE - M2 @ BRIFERAETEREETTIE - QR
AR ERMEE G SRR TA R 7 NHAT
BHEETERRE - BIAEKIBGBEE - R AR
RRREHENFERCRERBRTEEERE &g

AOMEFERY TERE ) BE - MIREREEERER
o AMEAREDBEEEERTREMELZTEE
AREREEERE  MIFRBRAEBEMNEHRR
RMEEMBRBEEHEMELEZHEER - R
BEETIE  AMEATEETRIL S RXERR
eI E (BMEER12EARLUTE) REEEEE
ZHE  REFELT  HEERREENEARR
RATELERESS o

ERUBREENE R T EREABERFREE
BEMEAMEANEERE  MEXFETEEHEEH
BRI EEE -

TREAFE AT EEH RIS EHE E KRB AR IMEN - &
T EMEHANGERABEENZRERER 2
8 o ZNBFRE29FTIEEE - MT2—/N\FAB=+H" K
BEERARBRETIHBCEEERRFEMEEN
FERS AR T AR+ =B T AEE T
BA+tECTRANBS AR —FAS—ELFR
3ft o Fit - —EEEMEBIFREERIFI6E  ZF
HMIRER D FIREAIERS A E RIE - UMEEREAEER
E - EEREEET/AZERMN - MR ERRER
RS 2RI 1 SR AR S AT L el L Z (R A & KBk
WEBFHRER - ABERRIRETERFRZ I
DU ER AR E B TR &S 2RI 5 1 OfRAHE SR SRR
FEEZHTEERABZEEE -



HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The standard offers
different transition options and practical expedients,
including the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are, or contain, leases. If this practical expedient
is chosen, the Group will apply the new definition
of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application.
If the practical expedient is not chosen, the Group
will need to reassess all of its decisions about which
existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using the
new definition. Depending on whether the Group
and the University elect to adopt the standard
retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective
method of recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment
to the opening balance of funds at the date of initial
application, the Group and the University may or
may not need to restate comparative information
for any changes in accounting resulting from the
reassessment.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on
the way that the Group accounts for its rights and
obligations under a lease when it is the lessor under
the lease.

ERMBREERF 16N — - F—A—H8z
1B FEHIMER - ZERREMHTEZEEEER
BEETHZE  BEMALNHEZEEETS A B
PRARHR (BEE) HE - MEBLETRETS
A ARERREREEMBMEEREIEHEEZ
HMERERANEXERBHSZEETILZEH o fHih
EEEEEETNE  ABPERERAGRATEREMN
FHMAEEHMLREFEHA (NES) MEMEZHRE
RE  IRFABPERRABE T EZLLEMTI LERMR
EBMBMELERE16E - sBRITEETTEMSR
eSS EXERE B AR REERE - K
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BE) 2 LLREH -
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AR EHEAEER S RIEEREATE -

103



	白頁
	p.1-5
	p.6-8
	p.9-62 5 11
	p.63-103

